
 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Agenda 
January 20, 2015 

6:30 P.M. – Executive Session 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Executive Session: Property Acquisition [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C)] 
 
Roll Call  
 
Acknowledgment that meeting was properly noticed 
 
Pledge of Allegiance  
 
Public Comment  
 
Correspondence   
 
Council Committee Updates 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda  
 
MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
(a) Financial Update 
 
(b) Update on the DEP Public Hearing on the Train Layover Facility 
 
(c) Reminder of dog license renewals 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
3. The Town Council will hear public comments on an application for a CDBG grant 

under the MicroEnterprise Program for Blue Dog Daycare for a project at Brunswick 
Landing, and will take any appropriate action.  (Manager)   

HEARING/ACTION 
 
4. The Town Council will hear public comments on a special amusement license 

application, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
 

Special Amusement 
Brunswick Lodge of Elks #2043 
D/B/A: Brunswick Lodge of Elks    Ms. Angela Brackett 
179 Park Row 

HEARING/ACTION 
1 

 



 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
5. The Town Council will consider options for parking limitations on sections of Page 

Street, and will take any appropriate action.  (Councilor Millett) 
ACTION 

 
6. The Town Council will consider approving the “Agreement for Town Attorney 

Services” between the Town of Brunswick and Preti Flaherty for legal services for 
2015, and will take any appropriate action. (Councilor Brayman) 

ACTION 
 
7. The Town Council will discuss changes to the Council Rules of Order and Procedure 

relative to order of agenda items, expanding consent agenda, and public hearing 
procedures, and will determine if any future action is necessary.  (Manager) 

DISCUSSION 
 
8. The Town Council will discuss adjustments to pay for non-union employees, and will 

take any appropriate action. (Manager) 
ACTION 

 
9. The Town Council Chair will make Council appointments to the following committees:  

• Appointment Sub-committee 
• Brunswick Development Corporation (1 member) 
• Captain Fitzgerald Recreation & Conservation Committee 
• Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation 

Committee  
•     Recycling & Sustainability Committee  
• Solid Waste Task Force Committee 

ACTION 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of December 15, 2014 
b) Approval of the Minutes of January 5, 2015 
c) Approval of Games of Chance for Elks’ Lodge #2043 
d) Approval of the “Resolution authorizing the Town Treasurer to waive foreclosure on 

certain real estate tax lien mortgages” 
e) Annual permission to allow the Marine Resource Committee the authority to open and 

close coastal waters  
f) Permission to accept and expend the 2014-15 Byrne Grant in the amount of $6,916.00 
g) Permission to accept and expend the Cumberland County EMA Grant in the amount of 

$19,227.20. 
 

 
INDIVIDUALS NEEDING AUXILIARY AIDS FOR EFFECTIVE 

COMMUNICATION SHOULD CONTACT  
THE TOWN MANAGER’S OFFICE AT 725-6659 (TDD 725-5521) 

  

2 
 



Brunswick Town Council 
Agenda 

January 20, 2015 
Council Notes and Suggested Motions 

 
Executive Session: Acquisition of real property [1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C 

 
Suggested Motion:   
Motion to go into executive session to discuss acquisition of real property per 1 
M.R.S.A. §405(6)(C). 

 
Council Committee Updates 
 
Councilors with information on the Committees they are involved with will share information 
with the Council and public. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
(a) Financial Update:  Manager Eldridge will update the Council on the Town’s financial 

picture halfway through the fiscal year. Manager Eldridge will also briefly discuss the 
Governor’s budget proposal.  Copies of financial reports will be posted online, but are 
not included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(b) Update on the DEP Public Hearing on the Train Layover Facility:  This item is to 

provide the public with the latest information from the January 9th pre-hearing 
conference.  A copy of the report from the DEP is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
(c) Reminder of renewal of dog licenses:  This item is to remind the public that 2015 dog 

licenses are available and must be renewed by January 31, 2015, in order to avoid a $25 
late fee.  That date is a Saturday, so if you are coming to the office, you must do so by 
Friday, January 30th by 4:30 p.m. 

 
Suggested Motion:  No motion is required. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
3. This item is the required Public Hearing for a Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Micro-Enterprise Assistance application on behalf of Blue Dog Day Care. On 
December 1, 2014, the Council approved the submission of a Letter of Intent to apply 
for the Micro-Enterprise Assistance grant. On December 4, 2014, the Office of 
Community Development invited the Town to apply for this grant. Blue Dog is 
requesting that the Town submit this grant application in the amount of $50,000 to 
support building and yard improvements and technical systems upgrades for the 
business. The Council action will be to adopt a resolution. Copies of the public hearing 
notice, proposed application, proposed resolution, a memo from Linda Smith including 

3 
 



a flyer about the business, the letter of intent to DECD and letter of invitation from 
DECD are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adopt a “Council Resolution – Micro-Enterprise Assistance Program” for 
Blue Dog Day Care. 
 

4. This item is the required public hearing and renewal of the special amusement license 
for Brunswick Lodge of Elk’s #2043.  They are requesting D.J.s and occasional bands 
for events they hold.  Copies of the public hearing notice and application are included in 
your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the special amusement license for Brunswick Lodge of Elk’s #2043, 
located at 179 Park Row. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
5. This item is sponsored by Councilor Millett to discuss parking restriction options for 

Page Street.  This is a narrow street and there are some concerns with vehicles parking 
for extended times on the street.  There are two options included in your packet for 
possible action – limit parking to two hours or create a permit system like the one 
enacted for Longfellow Avenue.  The Council can discuss these options or any other 
suggestions to address resident and public safety concerns.  Copies of a memo from the 
Town Manager and the draft amendments are included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Action to be determined as a result of Council discussion. 

 
6. This item is to approve the contract between the Town of Brunswick and Preti Flaherty 

for legal services for 2015.  Manager Eldridge has outlined the cost of services in a 
memo.  Copies of a memo from Manager Eldridge and the draft contract are included in 
your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the “Agreement for Town Attorney Services” between the Town of 
Brunswick and Preti Flaherty for legal services for 2015 as attached to the permanent 
record. 

 
7. This item is to discuss amendments to the Council Rules of Order and Procedure.   The 

first amendment will change the order of agenda items, which will allow the Consent 
Agenda to appear earlier in the meeting so that standard approvals can be included 
there, not both on the Manager’s Report and Consent Agenda.  This also allows the 
Council to pull an item on the Consent Agenda and make it an action item, if they feel 
more discussion is required.  The proposal also looks to provide additional explanation 
as to how the public hearing procedures are handled.  Per the rules, the Council cannot 
make changes at this time, but if you wish, the changes can be made at the next 
meeting.  A copy of the drafted changes is included in your packet. 

 
4 

 



Suggested Motion:  
There is no motion since this is a discussion item.  The Council will determine if this 
item is to come back for adoption. 

 
8. This item is for the Council to discuss adjustments to the pay of non-union employees.  

This item was discussed briefly in December and will also be discussed at the Council 
retreat.  Written materials will be provided prior to Monday night’s meeting.   
 
Suggested Motion:  
Action to be determined as result of Council discussion. 

 
9. This item is for the Chair to make Council appointments to a variety of Committees.  

This item comes back from the January 5th Inauguration meeting.  
 

Suggested Motion:  
No motion required as these are Chair appointments. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

a) Approval of the Minutes of December 15, 2014: A copy of the minutes is included in 
your packet. 

b) Approval of the Minutes of January 5, 2015: A copy of the minutes is included in your 
packet. 

c) Approval of Games of Chance for Elks’ Lodge #2043: This item is the semi-annual 
approval of games of chance for the Elk’s Lodge.  A copy of the request is included in 
your packet. 

d) Approval of the “Resolution authorizing the Town Treasurer to waive foreclosure on 
certain real estate tax lien mortgages”:  This item is an annual Resolution adopted by 
the Council.  As the Resolution states, on February 23, 2015, tax liens are foreclosed 
and any property that has not had the taxes paid becomes Town property.  Each year 
staff reviews the potential properties and makes a determination whether or not it is in 
the best interest of the Town to foreclose on certain properties.  Reasons not to foreclose 
would include that some properties, primarily mobile homes, would cost more for the 
Town to dispose of than the amount due in taxes.  The liens stay on the properties, the 
Town just does not foreclose, so the Town is still entitled to the owed taxes.  A copy of 
the Resolution is included in your packet. 

e) Annual permission to allow the Marine Resource Committee the authority to open and 
close coastal waters:  The Marine Resource Committee is requesting their annual 
permission from the Council to open and close coastal waters to shellfish harvesting.  
This approval takes the responsibility of opening and closing flats from the Council and 
gives it to the Committee.  A copy of a memo from Officer Devereaux will be included 
in your packet. 

f) Permission to accept and expend the 2014-15 Byrne Grant:  Based upon the Town’s 
crime statistics, Brunswick is allocated a certain percentage of the federal Edward 
Byrne Memorial pass though grant. The amount Brunswick could apply for in 2014/15 
was $6,916.00. No match is required, however the money cannot supplant local funds. 
The Department has proposed to use the money for mobile (cruiser) radio equipment, a 
radar unit (for traffic enforcement), game cameras (used for surveillance by CID), a 
Nikon SLR digital camera (used for crime scene processing) and an adjustable monitor 

5 
 



array stand (for a dispatch work station). None of these items are in the regular budget 
so there is no risk of supplantation. 

g) Permission to accept and expend the Cumberland County EMA Grant:  The Police 
Department has been awarded “leftover” FY 2013 emergency management grant money 
to replace/improve some of the protective equipment for their special response team. 
The funds are for the purchase of six helmets, six ballistic vests and six protective plates 
for the vests. The total amount of the grant is $19,447.20.  

 
Neither grant requires a match. A copy of a memo for both grants from Commander 
Waltz is included in your packet. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 

 
Suggested Motion:  
Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

 

6 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - A 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
IN COUNCIL PACKETS 
BUT ON LINE 
 
 



 
 
 

01/07/2015 11:44    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2014 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

10 Taxes                              
_________________________________________

 
111190 41101  Property Taxes   36,189,094  36,189,094  36,465,852.83       8,967.85                   -276,758.83  100.8%*
111190 41103  Deferred Property Tax     -200,000    -200,000            .00            .00                   -200,000.00     .0% 
111190 41104  Tax Abatements      -75,000     -75,000     -12,989.91        -356.20                    -62,010.09   17.3% 
111190 41105  Interest on Taxes       75,000      75,000      28,852.85       4,752.88                     46,147.15   38.5%*
111190 41106  Tax Lien Costs Revenu       12,000      12,000      13,361.49          48.00                     -1,361.49  111.3%*
111190 41107  Tax Lien Interest Rev       12,000      12,000      17,999.85            .00                     -5,999.85  150.0%*
111190 41109  Payment in Lieu of Ta      150,000     150,000      95,900.30            .00                     54,099.70   63.9%*
111190 41197  BETE reimbursement      157,895     157,895     413,635.00     413,635.00                   -255,740.00  262.0%*
111190 41198  Homestead exemption r      427,247     427,247     321,993.00            .00                    105,254.00   75.4%*
111190 41199  Miscellaneous tax adj        3,343       3,343            .00            .00                      3,343.00     .0%*
111191 41110  Excise Tax - Auto    2,825,000   2,825,000   1,487,662.48     204,480.61                  1,337,337.52   52.7%*
111191 41111  Excise Tax Boat/ATV/S       25,000      25,000       3,390.35         141.40                     21,609.65   13.6%*
111191 41112  Excise Tax - Airplane        4,000       4,000            .00            .00                      4,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Taxes                        39,605,579  39,605,579  38,835,658.24     631,669.54                    769,920.76   98.1%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   39,605,579  39,605,579  38,835,658.24     631,669.54                    769,920.76

 
20 Licenses & Fees                    
_________________________________________

 
121111 42207  Passport Fees        8,000       8,000       6,100.00       1,150.00                      1,900.00   76.3%*
121111 42208  Postage Fees            0           0          39.98            .00                        -39.98  100.0%*
121111 42209  Passport Picture Reve        2,000       2,000       1,668.00         120.00                        332.00   83.4%*
121411 42100  Building Permits      132,500     132,500     103,930.37       7,127.06                     28,569.63   78.4%*
121411 42101  Electrical Permits       31,000      31,000      21,823.83       6,521.36                      9,176.17   70.4%*
121411 42102  Plumbing Permits       20,500      20,500      12,285.00       2,955.00                      8,215.00   59.9%*
121611 42200  Hunting & Fishing Lic        1,300       1,300         474.75         175.75                        825.25   36.5%*
121611 42201  Dog License Fee        2,502       2,502       1,172.00         900.00                      1,330.00   46.8%*
121611 42202  Vital Statistics       45,000      45,000      27,951.40       4,020.60                     17,048.60   62.1%*
121611 42203  General Licenses       24,250      24,250       4,875.00       3,075.00                     19,375.00   20.1%*
121611 42204  Victulars/Innkeepers       20,675      20,675         600.00            .00                     20,075.00    2.9%*
121611 42205  Shellfish Licenses       15,175      15,175         250.00            .00                     14,925.00    1.6%*
121611 42206  Neutered/Spayed Dog L        4,510       4,510       2,152.00       1,684.00                      2,358.00   47.7%*
121611 42208  Postage Fees            0           0         266.52         105.70                       -266.52  100.0%*
121911 42300  Planning Board Appl F       15,000      15,000      13,294.15         150.00                      1,705.85   88.6%*
122121 42400  Fire Permits          500         500         130.00          20.00                        370.00   26.0%*
122221 42500  Conc Weapons Permits          600         600         485.00          75.00                        115.00   80.8%*
122221 42501  Parking Permit fee            0           0         150.00         150.00                       -150.00  100.0%*
123131 42600  Public Works Opening            0           0          48.00            .00                        -48.00  100.0%*

 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=dkVGmGngCZB/hJzPQYpeKPllXlaUvecTESXgjGrsersRjMGMPgvflqin0jfYKw43&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=YdVPRwG1IdocCgvlBCosv97OY6xga9b3f7E0xgD2usZVo57w9FHAlIn0j22gDasJ&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sDd/5I6NzoiWSTB0w5MDsl5zSqcZsGqAMULgtkV7As7RfqspI33HkGU1U0gguL28&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=b5IJ35x2NAs3vF3q%2BhNr2jcA1yEDctHQGogSjYyMRw5gitvNp%2BWK%2B/GvdmWw4KIv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mQu3eQShR9pboo%2BjTZyUSOPllcTeJn4VQo%2BkNM6C0gu2QhOrfaFTsG0xHikQ7m8r&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=my/8JgLXGSMNgPVGPjJiIfHpl7OFvup/WaSjgjObwownRgkvbBzL21kGBrCtvACr&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CJQ0AehOR8Ehl88J%2BCV0fDk2Pnjw4Qqhgo7sx3NJSd7k7ePZ0J3gRj1DH4yLQO2d&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=rhfbaUBqOOYlGkxj6aZZM5rqNwYpzhf6lp/lQReXvYkHt9260/dKf8EFq9Jn%2BnpN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Cr0JAT3rTGQpTpyzUNFgHRDJYVoD7YGAdpWWCRovh//CYwPjpj%2BMOCngOO84EwYt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Ud2NXWtJksoA%2B7hWItGQg/gueLh7UsWwIaGgfBTJvp/5HQIqgE0m3r6sWFnFw0DD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0XqCyBFyMXQ2sErRPcFjF3bdvs%2BYXr6BazM6MWc%2BS/ClHahTNrHo8P4s/I1iLHr1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=n1sU0FaidwFPOvgzDnDm5G45MQGvMW0k50tN1zrOY2uk2jAuuBQbF7xRqtocvso/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=COOkMcqrYp/yf30A0aKcJ7kmHkHeGLaWRPJESJzxZ4kMPEHnIrJUfa/dDXnJFNo1&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=8zw2wXgVuaBSICn9sqSHchWBAP4s1kGqptiVa12UeSgP2Ll1Ri1eOphzTllFISQG&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OA8mnEJue9oA9PTy%2BLXqZ6TNqE%2BxxT/AygImlNvSkHb5Kzg2cmZA1oRCmOqIVQRq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=vRrnnncvCbjJhaMrmJbZsFXpCxCqgRZdU/diCEau1sP2Am9oaqRViGYiIh%2BMeaps&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4SHPwI1HafLtPgXf%2B7ptQtZzMR7J1qXwmQHY41RzEDfbtmrfdU/7DbQXcx6U9uIs&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wV9ZimgDPUeGxZmlXLmXEWHG/VHOKArFfHkq0Vdr744EuBEGVICqVKePUesdb7j5&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=%2BZDg1fsX1CsfUBJ6hN00LULVPM6tqDdw1sK4ax1IgoxisEs%2B9aRAFYrXWp6QVG%2Br&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2GEnzA4zET4sGRo0RIBW62tBPsMkYQfcUbXYBMfmG3VFJKOtqG5Plyn7hFGjxmy8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=q2gdghybrVMUHQZIl2cSd4yliaLGFRnxAPOoDIbC79xIdKhppz8Q2BRUcl23cecS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Bql6YajL0qPRKPfe9OuKogWiVx69JtG9qwOUBQ1Q/zhyBj/SzB%2BG21BLZCSBY%2BuW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PtZZZys%2B0iPUx0Tn9MimMvqKfHvVaUgCBVYz1g4XaK73FFudStuasaRDqJE2BAIv&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OfVddi3rCJplw4inhSfVDlDrJH3myqISr5eeo1rcIKzNTYqSScyl15RNs5b70Bfj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=YJ7NcX%2BHOALodMD4Xg7pul9pOPzRu2dbO37QXJkgMYnP0qkIzvSJecjk6gEfafMu&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=4eC8jQOVMdUPSZbYgcxkR9VRoO3qMRJOYaM6UnhjfPBScZ%2BXn38n0wsNAHzMf0Ii&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=l7y2JLzelSCrCEcAW6kHW6s3z6DA8Zue05R%2BO7zZqP/LEv26J8lBt%2BSW8%2BN9zKm%2B&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Y2KvTRYMmowaMc6y3X3XunYp8DZ/F0eU8IoY0ZDPv86eRFEswLShhqrzfY2m2I3L&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1Wx3yOW8ZOF3ImxSXicDn0OvksoJhXdosSlAPSJZQBlTmOlneTQcyl2XwdfvA6bN&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=/klieENZ8/GZpjMSq/pN8D7w8UhvMooDB2eFd223m4VGKFMG5siSuadplwBIGlRS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=66pddCOFk395KVPPNXdsRk1c7GoNQbBYFxCDJsBWPq%2B4vv1FbHHT%2BSjzcKqnfJ8/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=s%2BtYVAlUSslUwuoD%2B/E75Z4/tD8uFSfUQdssyrY1v7aSVFo8%2BPiZwrFxuL3BHty2&


 
 
 

01/07/2015 11:44    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2014 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

TOTAL Licenses & Fees                 323,512     323,512     197,696.00      28,229.47                    125,816.00   61.1%
 

TOTAL REVENUES      323,512     323,512     197,696.00      28,229.47                    125,816.00
 

30 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
131122 43505  FD EMPG grant       15,000      15,000       4,388.42            .00                     10,611.58   29.3%*
131132 43103  Highway Grant Fund      214,000     214,000     197,188.00     197,188.00                     16,812.00   92.1%*
131142 43104  State General Assista       24,000      24,000      14,726.09       1,811.54                      9,273.91   61.4%*
131190 43102  State Tax Exemption R       40,000      40,000       8,175.51            .00                     31,824.49   20.4%*
131192 43101  State Revenue Sharing      977,671     977,671     461,535.92      83,752.60                    516,135.08   47.2%*
131192 43105  Emergency Management            0           0      11,146.71            .00                    -11,146.71  100.0%*
131192 43106  Snowmobile Receipts        1,400       1,400            .00            .00                      1,400.00     .0%*
134546 43120  State Education Subsi    9,946,831   9,946,831   5,382,440.36     728,763.73                  4,564,390.64   54.1%*
134546 43150  Federal Education Sub            0           0      13,758.19      11,020.16                    -13,758.19  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental            11,218,902  11,218,902   6,093,359.20   1,022,536.03                  5,125,542.80   54.3%

 
TOTAL REVENUES   11,218,902  11,218,902   6,093,359.20   1,022,536.03                  5,125,542.80

 
40 Charges for services               
_________________________________________

 
141111 44110  Agent Fee Auto Reg       50,000      50,000      25,296.00       3,309.00                     24,704.00   50.6%*
141111 44111  Agent Fee Boat/ATV/Sn        1,500       1,500         476.00          77.00                      1,024.00   31.7%*
141211 44121  Rental of Property            0           0         700.00         100.00                       -700.00  100.0%*
141611 44131  Advertising Fees            0           0         515.46            .00                       -515.46  100.0%*
142121 44155  Ambulance Service Fee      875,000     875,000     420,680.49      58,409.32                    454,319.51   48.1%*
142121 44166  Special Detail - Fire        1,000       1,000       1,951.84            .00                       -951.84  195.2%*
142221 44161  Witness Fees        3,000       3,000       2,350.00         500.00                        650.00   78.3%*
142221 44162  Police Reports        3,600       3,600       2,510.50         703.00                      1,089.50   69.7%*
142221 44163  School Resource Offic       84,000      84,000            .00            .00                     84,000.00     .0%*
142221 44165  Special Detail - Poli        1,000       1,000      36,572.00       3,594.00                    -35,572.00 3657.2%*
142221 44167  Dispatch Services fee      141,500     141,500      75,530.63      10,994.27                     65,969.37   53.4%*
143431 44175  Recycling Revenue       25,000      25,000      12,977.45       4,880.45                     12,022.55   51.9%*
144545 44100  School Tuition, etc      137,000     137,000      23,208.01      12,522.86                    113,791.99   16.9%*
145051 44121  Rental of Property            0           0         800.00            .00                       -800.00  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Charges for services          1,322,600   1,322,600     603,568.38      95,089.90                    719,031.62   45.6%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,322,600   1,322,600     603,568.38      95,089.90                    719,031.62

 
50 Fines & Penalties                  
_________________________________________

 
151621 45103  Unlicensed Dog Fines        6,250       6,250         675.00            .00                      5,575.00   10.8%*

 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=va46LVCT9Dd9uUXvioWWHJ6Kx/WyPT2K7zYD%2BfSlkNM%2BcFntw96mCKOZsUo7CKKP&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=kmsRw0zfhKsriROmEMRtDv5L8p2nGmuiGYHi73nI95Q14mo2EEtQtFsfrIL9rgie&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1uFUjzeYdZEO/up/kD13fAWernsyOCvzd62m%2BF6Aqo4Wtd0poSGXoY0WoXBy0%2BOg&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=V5PK18%2Bw9j5uPgVb1VFDMxk5PMBYonsVwi3JP7irL4cEyiwYYl8MwHtos5Cm8lIX&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2gv0TcCKP6RUCH0QS5sZJkL4Y1iy3ysKkf%2BZeL28NVHhP4OBfQDeEBZVl9VLRLvf&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=nhtZRKtg3y4Z/usSx7cb%2BKTcNWU3oELH6SiMjct5/pGNdHN0XKBdkwTWaoG470Aa&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uBfbBwd6GctP2O6jllN2abMCCISjyhxmBVAwVvMwe2HX4viuDZV8R1JkNzOb/7Os&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=2Wx3pdGLF8CxfyGEf6kEioKFHZ1cWYC0IOLbsFd4TuJcG3mvsk9V2xFnQx4xZKd0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gBb3SuNsd8fCwkAUsbaWb7/vVpmvFwicmHXHBLAE8HmI3Ab8FXWTRMRAg5fE6f/0&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QdcDAJUCQF1hh4%2B%2B0GEOEYd%2B6bMrJjz6FhhA/tdPNrgs66LVZ7yVQ812dSXX36wS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=gGybsRbuFZHerfOPeunPIa6auz2ItrGzUW2twSzshoPkqs4FWIFTSBPLFrSEta2r&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=wVplv15mus3uax7BzSbEp/p5S20Gq6gMwbWMAJUPfOhoD40%2BZuY9U6ccU/YXd9v8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=egR1%2BDx9x3JtY8am0rckRpI/XoGYfkmTSvjOL8xtzGv6xluUV4KYnKGxcbozp1O9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=FtDb9VaWzeZfrb%2BffhIsacLlz2SiEQGy0cDyR8C9dvkxe7TeamASO%2B3pTTl5i4nq&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OIJ6tISGXDCzRcXRXZCyf%2BSZmMhbXNqqI8i%2BSWG28vYwS4n9s0s85RrProVe0c40&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pq95ZC84HJ5uJUrFEX2hPc12rShEGovC8eFztplfeHi3GpoUyiNa7ibFkI4bB7yc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=i17M%2B9XzcUwAbvggBoleQm3H9B/QJ9rO3wrvNNcXfa1ILZDVxabI4/y6WnfoJzot&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=sHnD5MROdq9CrkFQySM66%2BqU/4T7Ytg/s3H569INjQdZLYJg7HvPMb4V6XFUfz1u&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=QvqeMfv0VVlJ0tl%2BqTqyQjWrbA%2BvyTquZLnu6RJ2VmuToSDUEGMQcY29JVY%2BQF28&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=y9SBJvz0DrWeRom2rloQ%2BlfT9dcbTJMjjiZPngoBobARyZUxE8WGGS5AOCSz7P7T&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Gyd5VhtPTSi%2B8HYhD6YRP6h19ul1tO27goY7P7WnMZ7JRZ5LcORbHCl1R4aAGYnn&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=c13VW6WSwhom98RLqRSvZzJZAou%2BFy31OVMgXhuMm9p8Yd1iPyOrDL22PDjINUz/&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=o/3ClA8Pmng1ZtP463HG5vs5i9I34bBzsoSo%2BNqXskmAYv9dZM8g%2BfHLqSo9GNfW&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=saaTfA42H4odb1vM6sREHekIHIgtSnf5wlPfBWPZ6kQbeN0zyqSAXgFgIrJUNjr/&


 
 
 

01/07/2015 11:44    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2014 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
152121 45104  False Alarm Fire        1,000       1,000         325.00            .00                        675.00   32.5%*
152121 45107  Fire Code Violation F            0           0         100.00            .00                       -100.00  100.0%*
152221 45100  Ordinance Fines          600         600         271.00            .00                        329.00   45.2%*
152221 45101  Parking Tickets       20,000      20,000      16,550.00       4,585.00                      3,450.00   82.8%*
152221 45102  Leash Law Fines          600         600          50.00            .00                        550.00    8.3%*
152221 45105  False Alarm Police          300         300          10.00           5.00                        290.00    3.3%*
152221 45106  Restitution            0           0       1,302.09          35.74                     -1,302.09  100.0%*

 
TOTAL Fines & Penalties                28,750      28,750      19,283.09       4,625.74                      9,466.91   67.1%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       28,750      28,750      19,283.09       4,625.74                      9,466.91

 
60 Interest earned                    
_________________________________________

 
161193 46100  Interest Earned       40,000      40,000       4,292.20       1,692.33                     35,707.80   10.7%*

 
TOTAL Interest earned                  40,000      40,000       4,292.20       1,692.33                     35,707.80   10.7%

 
TOTAL REVENUES       40,000      40,000       4,292.20       1,692.33                     35,707.80

 
70 Donations                          
_________________________________________

 
171952 47000  BDC Contrib to Econ D       94,000      94,000            .00            .00                     94,000.00     .0%*
171952 47002  MRRA - MCOG DUES       15,000      15,000            .00            .00                     15,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Donations                       109,000     109,000            .00            .00                    109,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES      109,000     109,000            .00            .00                    109,000.00

 
80 Use of fund balance                
_________________________________________

 
181100 48000  Unapprop General Fund    1,000,000   1,000,000            .00            .00                  1,000,000.00     .0%*
181100 48001  Bal of State Revenue       50,000      50,000            .00            .00                     50,000.00     .0%*
184500 48003  Allocation for School      185,000     185,000            .00            .00                    185,000.00     .0%*
184500 48004  School Balance Forwar    2,810,000   2,810,000            .00            .00                  2,810,000.00     .0%*
184500 48005  Restricted-Sch Bond P      342,000     342,000            .00            .00                    342,000.00     .0%*

 
TOTAL Use of fund balance           4,387,000   4,387,000            .00            .00                  4,387,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    4,387,000   4,387,000            .00            .00                  4,387,000.00

 
90 Other                              
_________________________________________

 
191111 49000  Finance Miscellaneous        1,000       1,000       1,976.30         212.34                       -976.30  197.6%*

 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pgx5ipj2HxxM8gkLNFAyhQT11uA7PmRue7QLtJ98EeUBa8a/6fLL9dv6wYBpt%2BBS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=BvkWHTRhJM/a7YeTsQKlzujzQAOI7%2BZXEjbAWI9d01B5yyIH/DhnCu3GcavGjZ%2B9&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WtbKJ4vy1/BwysfuKBnCTJViPOPynzcfjDTCiDHZmipw7%2BWB23qCL%2BGtLvmhDM3A&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=uXCzKf/MyOwbkZ54DEgfHBnoeqz%2BUVbXD6j6vNmOWSScDXP2aYp4vDnoimARK28V&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=z8Iu27/wDMXtPoV3RqBMqT2W/Fp%2BHEReNLFg%2BwFyftNLmEDAw28%2B92aoEH/wfNPM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=9RPMwFOLlqfMlNEMsuQkOaFB1h5txlVcEb8i9C4VyWZm%2Bb7QgpEIubiBBT2u2ljh&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ltS47v93n5QEwHTxOjsKqZzycaG2tWy%2Btxc0uXvDq//Cdq2kb9i4LARxsTNwZ50p&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=DMoTbiN5oKI3dDURyeRVKoMKYRqbD8s/DsYjBM%2BZySi/d9HrXFy%2Bs0X83zZH1a6T&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OeBxkiMJp8poZ9C8zZrH6GHL5rZhPGkODrahnU/yK2B7a7ur6G%2BhZ/36wHJGrhmS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=YlHgv/Uf1XHGDG1ZVJnwFQRlukdiAD7OmM%2B0gBXAVewSXMb%2B8JzXI0nNB1Mn/522&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=CthTA1ivu01/JmlzWjDcXlHswsQGqz%2BoqUlBd6UnRKrA3%2BFit0A3er8VEisEfBAc&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PgWxfLfWyLGsWa7/C1HDiwINaQNklha0DPYqZ9XXMJjFIaGuxJRZ7QMiuco4%2B11d&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=TlOOZ9DYzn2oMHYJ6DB89W5Ljv1cDzf0qecGwfSBDuxa80gOKlOzDEsKMy/I05Gw&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=t3U6njYLhRcR9s1BW1wQWK0c8e/Ml49zPf9fnuQ%2BURW3AfQp9ixRapclcHJxKUMS&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=mSRVpbsW1dtLzn3b3oHxxbunJWSzNerEbfeH/tXsncD0ln5%2BqMhEUYE5J3sn9NdC&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=A4UWjJzBIIbgxGuxZ3cSIbkYXGyA7bUS4gDinAia9t2VuU0stYDgAzQzLxFaKFcC&


 
 
 

01/07/2015 11:44    |Town of Brunswick |P      4
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2014 REVENUE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL MTD REMAINING PCT
                                         ESTIM REV EST REV REVENUE REVENUE REVENUE COLL
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
191111 49101  Workers Comp Dividend            0           0      16,160.00            .00                    -16,160.00  100.0%*
191111 49104  Property & Casualty D            0           0       9,267.00            .00                     -9,267.00  100.0%*
191111 49105  Postage & Handling            0           0       1,371.02         118.02                     -1,371.02  100.0%*
191111 49106  W/C Proceeds            0           0       4,477.66         292.69                     -4,477.66  100.0%*
191192 49100  Cable Television      225,000     225,000      61,646.18            .00                    163,353.82   27.4%*
191194 49150  Gen Govt Asset Sales            0           0         150.00            .00                       -150.00  100.0%*
191611 49000  Town Clerk Miscellane        1,250       1,250         748.25          76.50                        501.75   59.9%*
191911 49000  Planning Miscellaneou          150         150         380.50           2.00                       -230.50  253.7%*
192121 49000  Fire Miscellaneous          800         800         924.82            .00                       -124.82  115.6%*
192221 49000  Police Miscellaneous            0           0       2,952.74            .00                     -2,952.74  100.0%*
192294 49153  Police Vehicle Sales        8,000       8,000            .00            .00                      8,000.00     .0%*
193131 49000  Public Works Miscella            0           0          81.82            .00                        -81.82  100.0%*
194141 49103  General Assistance Re            0           0       1,323.54            .00                     -1,323.54  100.0%*
194545 49000  School Miscellaneous      118,000     118,000      27,371.15      11,937.51                     90,628.85   23.2%*
195051 49000  Recreation Miscellane            0           0       1,000.33            .00                     -1,000.33  100.0%*
199980 48100  General Fund Transfer      710,000     710,000     511,224.73     311,224.73                    198,775.27   72.0%*

 
TOTAL Other                         1,064,200   1,064,200     641,056.04     323,863.79                    423,143.96   60.2%

 
TOTAL REVENUES    1,064,200   1,064,200     641,056.04     323,863.79                    423,143.96

 
GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,099,543  46,394,913.15   2,107,706.80                 11,704,629.85   79.9%

 
                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=1YOZQivW5Vs2dhOYLlSpWAnuXuWhxa8y0wgMFkhCHSbmyP%2BdgqKPsfpOWWRgVOt8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=pv82iRlU02Wj/12zMpyma%2BLwS36qUL3se2gQ13VN/ddk04npZGMztG8XEZGNjXSi&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=3XCS%2B9HvTzr4UrAtKpoZmgRg5xAdZZRU%2BE61Tddoi6hHjE1OxraP1G1QWwgB449Z&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=33xvJ4LuAnJbzOQWvqz5q9uW0aoce9QiLt5AiMrUwP5G6v9NBxYKsjbcuvneSkaI&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=H43cSTORUR05XMZHj0oZ1/D7tvrimPrQdEK1XCAbxXsRz7hZkob0GqM75IPvcf8v&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=HDooqWIROeaOSUfdwz9/hRL3Fjiq/iySdDB7cvPA9Kb1YfQxPYCfnRXXnLz6ySBU&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=WKORLGH%2B98Car9W4bTGXPiFc9xizn53DgeO/ITp2jIE50MKgh3Py1c4TPtVpkloD&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=Y01aVOb6TiCaX0MxaCqjCoO39bCKliPkSgTk%2BMLeP4eDGMz6Lj1u6ECdQhuSBAfB&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=PbyC5o6y3U5ntR2EwLV21guX0djt3tjYtqJSYJaXFLPs4WfzD28y2HC50jMP9sxM&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OVvMNItR8z61U1mccPB4zwiaXJpqSX7nidZAL6Nfg1uOmjJkULyBFhnkTUTqn0at&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=voDNrE6Kq5r2genSjJexMaOhMyHAKhEVNObYuoXIrAiQzFnSWum0lzzXp1HEpwf8&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=OaxTJO/bi60%2B435d9PVNtRcS9qrDd/5IjlVx2bzsaDscFv8uhdtQROIEIU2ojjYz&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=B3THsZf6FttLSzXdiszNrAOMyp1krVQ%2B3RYG8ZGAJ6UvyB46uyIyEEEFGsNfT8Gj&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=tc8Uw2dXy/YRpMTe/1i3kh0LqO7TZtqLWbp/hzkd3oDLJJTLZAx%2B%2B49GKWp/pC8V&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=0wk05bSp322slxZdnPHrN%2BWHD1ptIX2%2BpPLz0WOeU6rLq7hvqPWgeUYhhuqrl6Kt&
/views/PassThru.aspx?-E=IxoWgxiV8dAKzCplwu/tKdaq9Lrj4HLgfBzVJb%2BinqJgJ1WsNYJ1CaUEp%2B2OEK32&


 
 
 

01/07/2015 11:17    |Town of Brunswick |P      1
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2014 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

00 Fill                               
_________________________________________

 
19000 General Fund Transfers Out    1,147,860   1,147,860   1,147,860.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Fill                          1,147,860   1,147,860   1,147,860.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

10 General Government                 
_________________________________________

 
11000 Administration      489,397     489,397     259,700.71      90,302.85       4,430.45     225,265.84   54.0%
11100 Finance Department      715,425     715,425     324,535.19      47,120.55       1,950.00     388,939.81   45.6%
11150 Technology Services Dept      327,848     327,848     162,981.64      15,518.50      53,480.71     111,385.65   66.0%
11200 Municipal Officers       85,615      85,615      35,587.78       4,898.94            .00      50,027.22   41.6%
11210 Munic Bldg - 85 Union      210,720     210,720      78,736.96      13,930.95       5,159.82     126,823.22   39.8%
11220 Munic Bldg - 28 Federal            0           0            .00        -759.07            .00            .00     .0%
11230 Risk Management      473,750     473,750     177,813.95          98.84      77,103.00     218,833.05   53.8%
11240 Employee benefits            0           0    -119,744.75     -22,025.42            .00     119,744.75  100.0%
11250 Cable TV       47,790      47,790      22,540.08       3,779.66         190.00      25,059.92   47.6%
11300 Assessing      293,660     293,660     129,671.78      19,419.48       2,301.29     161,686.93   44.9%
11600 Town Clerk & Elections      362,077     365,477     175,076.63      27,410.20            .00     190,400.37   47.9%
11900 Planning Department      490,779     510,504     238,137.35      35,441.91       9,809.28     262,557.38   48.6%
11950 Economic Development Dept      109,087     109,087      46,143.64       7,604.46            .00      62,943.36   42.3%

 
TOTAL General Government            3,606,148   3,629,273   1,531,180.96     242,741.85     154,424.55   1,943,667.50   46.4%

 
 

20 Public Safety                      
_________________________________________

 
12100 Fire Department    3,104,392   3,113,742   1,507,152.06     251,408.46      17,435.42   1,589,154.52   49.0%
12150 Central Fire Station       42,089      45,739      18,248.59       2,666.16         819.40      26,671.25   41.7%
12160 Emerson Fire Station       41,825      41,825      15,790.13       2,795.44       4,390.41      21,644.46   48.2%
12200 Police Department    3,762,478   3,762,478   1,755,330.39     269,322.36            .00   2,007,147.61   46.7%
12210 Police Special Detail            0           0      30,548.29       2,000.32            .00     -30,548.29  100.0%
12220 Emergency Services Dispatch      777,412     777,412     362,673.82      58,265.72            .00     414,738.18   46.7%
12250 Police Station Building       98,020      98,020      42,627.94      11,206.44         133.56      55,258.50   43.6%
12310 Streetlights      208,000     208,000      95,886.80      17,575.42            .00     112,113.20   46.1%
12320 Traffic Signals       31,600      31,600       7,445.66       1,412.97       6,000.00      18,154.34   42.5%
12330 Hydrants      438,790     438,790     114,949.90            .00            .00     323,840.10   26.2%
12340 Civil Emergency Preparedness        2,000       2,000            .00            .00            .00       2,000.00     .0%

 
TOTAL Public Safety                 8,506,606   8,519,606   3,950,653.58     616,653.29      28,778.79   4,540,173.87   46.7%

 
 
 
 



 
 
 

01/07/2015 11:17    |Town of Brunswick |P      2
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2014 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
30       Public Works                       APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

30 Public Works                       
_________________________________________

 
13100 Public Works Administration      429,111     429,111     200,855.41      32,581.97            .00     228,255.59   46.8%
13110 PW General Maintenance    1,706,214   1,706,214     831,361.11     212,745.12     121,047.14     753,805.75   55.8%
13130 Refuse Collection      581,847     581,847     267,699.95      43,195.63     208,160.56     105,986.49   81.8%
13140 Recycling      297,729     297,729     128,610.98      15,266.74     166,844.46       2,273.56   99.2%
13150 PW Central Garage      741,300     751,500     358,709.79      72,129.31      26,375.96     366,414.25   51.2%

 
TOTAL Public Works                  3,756,201   3,766,401   1,787,237.24     375,918.77     522,428.12   1,456,735.64   61.3%

 
 

40 Human Services                     
_________________________________________

 
14100 General Assistance      163,607     163,607      89,032.06      13,626.19       2,299.58      72,275.36   55.8%
14120 Health & Social Services        2,766       2,766         948.93            .00            .00       1,817.07   34.3%

 
TOTAL Human Services                  166,373     166,373      89,980.99      13,626.19       2,299.58      74,092.43   55.5%

 
 

45 Education                          
_________________________________________

 
14500 School Department   35,763,587  35,763,587  12,953,698.12   2,433,003.39            .00  22,809,888.88   36.2%

 
TOTAL Education                    35,763,587  35,763,587  12,953,698.12   2,433,003.39            .00  22,809,888.88   36.2%

 
 

50 Recreation and Culture             
_________________________________________

 
15000 Recreation Administration      456,225     466,225     213,180.52      33,802.71       7,101.47     245,943.01   47.2%
15050 Rec Buildings and Grounds      678,434     678,434     305,604.18      46,604.93       4,794.76     368,035.06   45.8%
15150 Rec Federal St Building            0           0            .00        -413.24            .00            .00     .0%
15250 Rec Building 211      160,327     160,327      71,260.41      25,407.45       6,878.56      82,188.03   48.7%
15300 Teen Center       15,000      15,000      15,000.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%
15310 People Plus      115,000     115,000     110,000.00            .00            .00       5,000.00   95.7%
15400 Curtis Memorial Library    1,285,000   1,285,000     638,725.22     105,833.33            .00     646,274.78   49.7%

 
TOTAL Recreation and Culture        2,709,986   2,719,986   1,353,770.33     211,235.18      18,774.79   1,347,440.88   50.5%

 
 

60 Intergovernmental                  
_________________________________________

 
 
 



 
 
 

01/07/2015 11:17    |Town of Brunswick |P      3
jhenze              |DECEMBER 2014 EXPENDITURE REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2015 06
 

ORIGINAL REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
60       Intergovernmental                  APPROP BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
16000 County tax    1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Intergovernmental             1,333,350   1,333,350   1,333,350.00            .00            .00            .00  100.0%

 
 

70 Unclassified                       
_________________________________________

 
17000 Promotion and Development      164,917     164,917     128,523.95          15.00            .00      36,393.05   77.9%
17010 Additional School Assistance       10,000      10,000            .00            .00            .00      10,000.00     .0%
17020 Cemetery Care        3,000       3,000       1,000.00            .00            .00       2,000.00   33.3%
17030 Wage Adjustment Account        9,000       9,000      30,000.00            .00            .00     -21,000.00  333.3%
17052 School Master Plan            0      14,527            .00            .00      14,526.97            .00  100.0%

 
TOTAL Unclassified                    186,917     201,444     159,523.95          15.00      14,526.97      27,393.05   86.4%

 
 

80 Debt Service                       
_________________________________________

 
18020 2006 CIP G/O Bonds      252,000     252,000     228,000.00            .00            .00      24,000.00   90.5%
18030 2011 GO CIP Bonds      264,890     264,890     586,300.00            .00            .00    -321,410.00  221.3%
18040 Police Station Bond      405,625     405,625     341,687.51            .00            .00      63,937.49   84.2%
18050 2010 Elementary School Bond            0           0   1,321,082.71            .00            .00  -1,321,082.71  100.0%

 
TOTAL Debt Service                    922,515     922,515   2,477,070.22            .00            .00  -1,554,555.22  268.5%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   58,099,543  58,170,395  26,784,325.39   3,893,193.67     741,232.80  30,644,837.03   47.3%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Julie Henze **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



































 
 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT - C 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 



 
 

 
ITEM 3 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 

Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
28 FEDERAL STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011-1583 

 
 

 
TELEPHONE      207-721-0292 

FAX                      207-725-6663 

 
 
 
TO:  Brunswick Town Council Members 
FROM:  Linda Smith, Business Development Manager 
SUBJECT: Blue Dog Day Care Request to submit a Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Program / 

Community Development Block Grant application 
DATE:  January 12, 2015 
 
On December 1, 2014, the Brunswick Town Council approved the Town Manager submitting a Letter of 
Intent (attached) to the Department of Economic and Community Development (DECD) Micro-Enterprise 
Grant Program on behalf of Blue Dog Day Care. On December 4, 2014, DECD responded with a Letter of 
Invitation to Apply for a Micro-Enterprise Grant (attached) on or before January 30, 2015. As a part of the 
Town of Brunswick – Blue Dog Day Care application, the Town of Brunswick must hold a Public Hearing. 
On December 15, 2014, the Town Council set the Public Hearing for Tuesday, January 20, 2015. 
 
The Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Program application requests a $50,000 grant. The DECD grant 
would be awarded to the Town of Brunswick, which in turn will lend it to Blue Dog Day Care, which meets 
the program eligibility threshold requirements as follows: a start-up or microbusiness that has five or fewer 
employees, one of whom owns the enterprise, and whose family income is considered Low to Moderate 
Income. The Town of Brunswick signs an agreement with Blue Dog Day Care, which assures they will 
repay the loan if they do not continue to hold and maintain the business for five years. If the owner should 
sell or dissolve the business or dispose of grant funded assets, repayment is as follows: Year 1 - 100%; 
Year 2 -  80%; Year 3 - 60%; Year 4 - 40%; Year 5 - 20%; Year 6 - no repayment required. 
 
Blue Dog Day Care is a start-up business in the Town of Brunswick. They provide dog day care services 
to up to forty (40) dogs on a daily basis. They are located on the Brunswick Landing at 41 Acadia Drive. A 
flyer highlighting their services and fees is attached. While they have made a substantial investment in 
the new business, they need additional financial resources for several facility and business improvements 
(see Activity Declaration on page 3 of the attached Application). The Micro-Enterprise Grant Program 
could provide that financial resource while allowing the new business to maintain a strong cash flow 
position as they grow their business.  
 
This is a great opportunity to access state resources to support a new Brunswick small business. I would 
ask that the Council support this Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application on behalf of Blue Dog 
Day Care. Thanks for your consideration of this project. I look forward to answering any questions you 
may have.  
 

 

Attachments 

Cc: John Eldridge, Town Manager, Town of Brunswick 
       Meghan Osborne, Owner, Blue Dog Day Care        





STATE OF MAINE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANTCOVER SHEET AND CERTIFICATIONS 

   Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Program 
 

A. Applicant Identification 
 

Applicant: Town of Brunswick 
Address: 85 Union Street 

 
Town/City/County: Brunswick, Maine / Cumberland County 
Zip Code + Four: 04011-2418 
Chief Executive Officer: John Eldridge, Town Manager 
Phone Number: 207-725-6659 E-mail: jeldridge@brunswickme.org  
Contact Person: Linda Smith 
Phone Number: 207-721-0292 E-mail: lsmith@brunswickme.org  
Census Tract(s) Where Proposed MEA Activities will occur: Brunswick Station - 08395 
 

  

DUNS #: Town or City DUNS (Dunn & Bradstreet) #: 077466274 

 
B.  The Applicant Certifies That: 
1.  State Certifications 
 
a. To the best of my knowledge and belief, the information in this Application is true and 
correct:   
b. the governing body of the applicant has duly endorsed the document;  
c. the proposed project has been reviewed and it complies with the Community's 
comprehensive plan and/or applicable state and local land use requirements;   
d. it will work with the Office of Community Development to develop a detailed project if 
it receives a conditional award; and  
e. it will comply with all applicable State laws and regulations. 
 
 2.  Federal Certifications 
 
a. it will take actions to affirmatively further fair housing and implement CDBG activities 
in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of l964 and Title VIII of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1968; 
 
b. it will not attempt to recover capital costs for the construction of public improvements, 
assisted in whole or in part with CDBG funds, by charging special assessments or fees 
against properties owned and occupied by persons of low and moderate income, 
including any fee, charge or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to 
such public improvements, unless: 
 

mailto:jeldridge@brunswickme.org
mailto:lsmith@brunswickme.org


(i) CDBG funds are used to pay the proportion of such fee or assessment that relates to 
the capital costs of such public improvements that are financed from revenue sources 
other than CDBG funds; or 
(ii) for purposes of assessing any amount against properties owned and occupied by 
persons of low and moderate income who are not persons of very low income, and the 
applicant certifies that it lacks sufficient CDBG funds to comply with the requirements of 
clause (i) above. 
 
c. prior to expenditure of CDBG funds, it will establish a local community development 
plan that identifies the Community's housing and community development needs, 
including the needs of low and moderate income, and the activities to be undertaken to 
meet them; 
 
d. it will provide in a timely manner for citizen participation, public hearings, and access 
to information with respect to the Maine CDBG Program and the proposed local CDBG 
project/program.  Indicate in public notices and at public hearings that the State 
program is competitive, the maximum grant amount that can be requested, and the 
general type of activities contained in the proposed local program.  Also announce in 
public notices the availability of the local program plan/application, describe the 
Community's previous CDBG performance (if any), and how the Community will collect, 
consider and maintain all oral and written comments received on the proposal; 
 
e. it will adopt and follow a residential anti-displacement and relocation assistance plan 
which complies with Section 104 (d) of the Housing and Community Development Act of 
1974, as amended, that at a minimum provides for the replacement of all low/moderate 
income dwelling units that are demolished or converted to a non-LMI housing use as a 
direct result of CDBG assistance, and a relocation assistance component; 
 
f. it is not listed on U. S. Dept of Labor’s Debarred and Suspended Contractor’s List and 
will not employ contractors or subcontractors on this list;   
 
g. it will comply with the requirements of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121 regarding 
government-wide restrictions on lobbying; and 
 
h. with the exception of administrative or personnel costs, it will verify that no person 
who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected official or appointed official of 
state or local government or of any designated public agencies, or subrecipients which 
are receiving CDBG funding may obtain a financial interest or benefit, have an interest 
in or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or 
agreement with respect to CDBG activities. 
 

 Town of Brunswick  

Signature of Chief Executive Officer       Name of Community           Date: mm/dd/year

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       2 



MICRO-ENTERPRISE ASSISTANCE GRANT 
PROGRAM ACTIVITY DESIGNATION SHEET 

 
1. Activity Declaration 
 

a. List the activities you will be doing in your proposed project: 

Blue Dog Daycare is owned and operated by a Low Moderate Income (LMI) 
individual. She also currently employs 4 employees. The business is newly 
located at the Brunswick Landing in the Town of Brunswick (as of November 
2014) and the service she is supplying, day care for dogs, is also new to the 
Town of Brunswick. The owner, Meghan Osborne, is seeking a grant through the 
Department of Economic and Community Development’s MicroEnterprise 
program for the following activities: 
• Exterior landscaping to eradicate plants which are potentially harmful to the 

animals’ paws; replace the gravel and weeds with playground grade wood 
chips; and, build / install dog play equipment; 

• Exterior painting of the building; 
• Install self-serve tubs, mats and dryer equipment for customers to use with 

their dogs; and, 
• Provide technical enhancements to purchase a laptop, upgrade the company 

website, and develop / add customized interactive dog training curriculum. 
 
2. MEA Grant Funds Requested 
 
 
 Micro-Enterprise Grant/Loan  Amount Requested:      $50,000__ 

 

 

□ Business Façade Grants  Amount Requested:  ____________ 
 
      Total Requested:   ____________ 
 
2.  Multi-Jurisdictional Declaration 
 

a. Is this a multi-jurisdictional project?    __ Yes   X No 
 

b. If yes, which local government has been designated as the lead applicant?         
 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
c. If yes, list all participating or benefiting local governments.  
_____________________________________________________________ 
 

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       3 



Community Development Block Grant 
Micro Enterprise Assistance Grant Program 

 
Required Responses to Impact, Development Strategy and Citizen 

Participation Sections 
 
1. IMPACT 

Problem Statement 

The closure of Naval Air Station Brunswick (NASB) represents one of the largest single 
employer relocations or closings in Maine’s history. Upon assessing the impact of NASB 
closure, the former Maine State Planning Office (SPO) revised the projected 2015 state 
gross state product downward by $390 million, cutting the projected growth rate from 
two to approximately one percent and estimated the total job loss at 6,500, of which 
5,500 would be localized in the Brunswick Labor Market Area. The SPO also revised 
state population growth downward by 7,400, as a result of NASB closure. State 
personal income was also reduced by $370 million, with State of Maine revenue 
projections reduced by some $20 million. The closure of NASB also negatively impacts 
the Town of Brunswick’s financial viability by depressing property values, as a result of 
military, federal civilian employees and their families departing the area, leaving behind 
vacant homes and rental units. Moreover, the Brunswick School District has 
experienced the loss of over $1 million in annual federal transfer payments. 

In the aftermath of NASB closure, job creation is the most pressing need for Brunswick 
and the Midcoast region. With assets including 3,300 acres of prime commercial real 
estate, over 2 million square feet of commercial and industrial space, a world-class 
aviation complex and the presence of higher education institutions, including Southern 
Maine Community College’s new Midcoast Campus, the University of Maine and 
Bowdoin College, Brunswick Landing, formerly NASB, is well-positioned to become 
Maine’s premier technology business park. The challenge facing Brunswick and its 
neighbors is to create employment opportunities through a diverse redevelopment of 
Brunswick Landing. The NASB Reuse Master Plan identified several potential market 
sectors and emphasized the creation a “framework within which a variety of corporate, 
business, academic, recreational, and community services can flourish”. Blue Dog Day 
Care represents a small but unique service in demand in the Brunswick community and 
contributes to the success of the larger diverse business framework at Brunswick 
Landing and in Brunswick. Blue Dog Day Care is consistent with the NASB Reuse 
Master Plan.  
 
Impact on the Local Economy 
 
The economic impact of NASB closure has been compounded by job losses due to the 
“great recession” and the ensuing weak national recovery. The 2013 average annual 
unemployment rate for the Brunswick LMA was 5.9% or 2,030 unemployed individuals, 

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       4 



up from 4.4% (or 1,467 unemployed) in 2005, when the base closure was announced. 
Brunswick’s current unemployment rate is 4.9% (through October 2014) which is slightly 
lower than Maine’s unemployment rate of 5.1%. 

Tax value increases whenever a business expands in the community or region. Since 
the properties at the former Base were federal and contributed no revenues to the 
municipality, all taxes generated from Blue Dog Daycare establishing its business in 
Brunswick are new tax revenues. Redeveloping Brunswick Landing by both attracting 
new businesses to the region and accommodating the growth of homegrown 
enterprises, such as the Blue Dog Daycare, is critical to the short- and long-term 
economic viability of Brunswick and the Midcoast region. With the closure of NASB, 
Brunswick and surrounding communities not only lost military and civilian jobs, the 
community and region have experienced a significant reduction in population, through 
the out-migration of over 3,000 military and federal civilian employees, as well as their 
families.  

As a result, local businesses, particularly those who serve the local market, have been 
faced with a smaller population of customers, as well as the loss of consumption 
associated with NASB’s $145 million annual payroll. Many of these small local 
businesses, including convenience stores, restaurants and dry cleaners, employed 
persons from low and moderate income households. Blue Dog Daycare, which started 
in November 2014, exemplifies the needed growth in small business and low moderate 
income employment for the area. 
 
Need for Funds 
 
Both the Town of Brunswick and the Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority 
(MRRA), the local redevelopment authority responsible for implementing the Reuse 
Master Plans for NASB and its Topsham Annex, face significant fiscal challenges. While 
MRRA is funded by a grant from the Department of Defense, Office of Economic 
Adjustment, it must become self-sustaining over time, covering NASB operating and 
maintenance costs with revenues from the sale and/or lease of NASB properties. Given 
the current pressure on local property taxes and diminished revenues from State 
Municipal Revenue Sharing, General Purpose Aid for school districts and excise taxes, 
towns are in a difficult position to leverage local resources to support economic 
development, when funding basic services is a challenge. Brunswick’s and MRRA’s 
fiscal challenges are compounded by the need to integrate 3,300 new acres into the 
community and provide municipal services and utilities to Brunswick Landing 
businesses. The Town of Brunswick’s economic and community development staff has 
worked in concert with MRRA to support business attraction and development activities, 
including taking the lead on this MicroEnterprise proposal. 

The MicroEnterprise funds are needed as gap financing to facilitate the building and 
landscape improvements and technical systems upgrades, which are critical to the long 
term success of Blue Dog Daycare at Maine’s Center of Innovation in Brunswick 
Landing. As a small start-up, Blue Dog is showing two month’s projections that meet or 
exceed its business projections. However, as a start-up, it does not have the track 

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       5 



record to attract traditional financial institution funds. In addition, traditional financing of 
the entire project would incur debt beyond the company’s ability to sustain. Private 
investment has been made available, but only for a portion of the total. A gap of 
$49,493 currently exists to support the overall project. If CDBG funds are not available, 
the company will have to incrementally make the lease-hold improvements and 
technical system upgrades which could adversely impact their competitive advantage. 
Market research is showing that other individuals / companies are considering 
Brunswick as a potential market, and these improvements are key to secure the long 
term loyalty of the current clientele.   

 
2. Development Strategy 
 

 
Business description & needs 
 
Blue Dog Day Care, located at 41 Acadia Drive, Brunswick, Maine, provides dog day 
care and professional training. Its primary market is to provide quality dog daycare 
services for dog owners who work during the day and want to provide their dogs with an 
alternative to remaining in the home environment as well as for dog owners who want to 
provide exercise and socialization options for their dogs.  
 
Training is offered for owners with puppy and mature dogs. Private and semi-private 
classes, offered for one hour once a week over four weeks, provide positive 
reinforcement based on Obedience Training and Behavior Modification models. Staff 
also provide individual “mini-trainings” during the day care period for a small additional 
fee. Dog owners do not need to use the day care component to access the training 
component and vice versa.   
 
Blue Dog’s owner has had two years successful experience offering this service in a 
previous location. She started the day care business with only three dogs registered a 
day and quickly grew serving over 25 dogs per day. In 2012, the business employed 
one individual in addition to herself and has expanded to 4 full time employees. 
The new location is large enough to accommodate 40 – 45 dogs for day care services 
on a regular basis. From its opening day on November 2, 2014, the business has 
served +30 dogs daily and often has reached its daily targeted (40-45) capacity level. 
 
MEA’s Impact  
 
To remain competitive, Blue Dog Day Care is committed to offering high quality day 
care services and professional training. The 41 Acadia Drive facility needs to put in 
place additional yard improvements to ensure its dogs continued health and well being. 
Blue Dog also needs to make its services more readily apparent on-line via a website, in 
addition to its Facebook page, and to provide its training modules as an interactive 
experience on line. In addition to the new interactive training opportunities, Blue Dog is 
offering another new service at the new location: self-serve wash tubs. These facility 
improvements and new product offerings exceed the private financing that Blue Dog 
has been able to access. 

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       6 



Project timeline 2014   

 
Early September 2014 Select existing building appropriate for dog day care 

activities 
Early October 2014 Develop renovation plan  
Mid to late October  
2014 

Begin initial building improvements at 41 Acadia Drive 
including privacy fencing installed, interior painting, 
interior improvements such as building sectional areas, 
exterior signs installed, etc.  

November 3, 2014 Blue Dog daycare opens to customers 
November 3, 2014  
to  
January 30, 2015 

Blue Dog provides dog day care services to an average of 
+40 dogs daily and offers private, group and staff mini 
training opportunities weekly 

  
 
 (See Attachment 1. For cost estimates and 2015 projected program timeline) 
 
3. Citizen Participation 
The planning effort that produced the Reuse Master Plans for NASB and the Topsham 
Annex was structured to include a series of public meetings, workshops and surveys 
that were designed to be open and inclusive. As a result of the Brunswick and Topsham 
local redevelopment authorities’ strong emphasis on public participation, the resulting 
Reuse Master Plans are strongly endorsed by local residents, state and local 
government officials, and business and civic leaders. Over the course of the public 
participation process the Brunswick Local Redevelopment Authority, MRRA’s 
predecessor agency, conducted 18 public planning workshops, sessions and seminars, 
which were attended by over 1,500 participants. This proposed reuse of the building 
and lot at 41 Acadia Drive by Blue Dog day care is consistent with the NASB Reuse 
Master Plan. 

Citizens were involved in the development of this application through the formal Council 
agenda on December 1, 2014 requesting submittal of the CDBG Letter of Intent, again 
on December 15, 2014 requesting the posting of a Public Hearing, and through their 
participation in the January 20, 2015 public hearing. The published public hearing notice 
and Town Council Resolution are attached. A public hearing notice was published in the 
January 9, 2015 edition of the Times Record (to be attached).  

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       7 



Community Development Block Grant 
Micro Enterprise Assistance Grant Program 

 

Budget Summary (Include Cash & In-Kind) 
 

 
Cost Category 
 
 

Column 
1 
 
CDBG 

Column 
2 
 
Local 

Column 
3 
 
State 

Column 
4 
 
Utility 

Column 
5 
 

Non- 
CDBG 

Federal 

Column 6 
 

Other 
(Private 

Investment) 

Column 7 
 

Cost 
Category 

Total 

MEGrants/Loans $50,000     $35,000 $85,000 
Façade Grants        
Architect        
Administration        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
Other (List)        
1.        
2.        
3.        
TOTAL COSTS $50,000     $35,000 $85,000 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       8 



Community Development Block Grant 
Micro Enterprise Assistance Grant Program 

 
Public Hearing Notice to Comply with Title VI Requirements 

 
Public Hearing Notice 

The Town of Brunswick 
 

The Town of Brunswick will hold a Public Hearing on Tuesday, January 20, 2015 at 7:00 
P.M. at the Brunswick Town Hall, Council Chambers, 85 Union Street, Brunswick, 
Maine to discuss an application being submitted to the State of Maine CDBG program 
for the MicroEnterprise Grant Assistance Program. The purpose of the grant application 
is to assist Blue Dog Day Care with building improvements, landscaping, and technical 
system enhancements. Public comments will be solicited at this Hearing and will be 
submitted as part of the application.  All persons wishing to make comments or ask 
questions about the grant application are invited to attend this Public Hearing. A copy of 
the application is available for review at the Town Clerk’s Office during normal business 
hours (Monday to Friday, 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM).  Comments may be submitted in writing 
to: Linda Smith at Town of Brunswick, 85 Union Street, Brunswick, Maine 04011 at any 
time prior to the Public Hearing.  TDD/TTY users may call 771. If you are physically 
unable to access any of the Town’s programs or services, please call Linda Smith at 
207-721-0292, so that accommodations can be made. 

 
 

 
 

TO BE INSERTED: SCANNED COPY OF NEWSPAPER ADVERTISEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       9 



Community Development Block Grant 
Micro Enterprise Assistance Grant Program 

 
Attachment 1. Cost Estimates and Projected Program Timeline 
 

Project timeline 2015 
 Start date End Date 
Submit MEA application 1-30-2015 N/A 
MEA grant awarded 3-30-2015 N/A 
Technical systems upgrade started 4-1-2015 6-30-2015 
Exterior Landscaping started 4-30-2015 5-15-2015 
Self-serve dog wash room construction 5-4-2015 4-28-2015 
Exterior painting 6-1-2015 8-3-2015 
   
   
   
   

 
 
Cost Estimates 

Project Activity Amount 
Building and yard improvements (through 10-31-2014) $35,000 
  
Working capital $5,000 
Exterior Landscaping $8,700 
Exterior painting $4,800 
Technical systems upgrade $6,500 
Self-serve dog wash room & equipment set-up $25,500 
CDBG request subtotal $50,000 
  

TOTAL: $85,000 
 
 

2014 CDBG Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Application                                                                                       10 



Brunswick Town Council Resolution      
Micro-Enterprise Assistance Grant Program 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick wishes to apply to the Department of Economic and 
Community Development for a Community Development Block Grant to carry out a 
community development program; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the planning process required by Maine Law and the CDBG Program have 
been complied with and the community has conducted at least one duly advertised public 
hearing; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Brunswick is cognizant of the requirement that should the 
intended National Objective of the CDBG program not be met all CDBG funds must be 
repaid to the State of Maine CDBG program; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Council of the Town of Brunswick that the Town 
Manager: 
 
1) Is authorized and directed to submit an application for the following program(s) and 

dollar amount(s) within the State of Maine’s CDBG Program: 
 
Program: _____Micro-Enterprise_Assistance________  Amount: _$50,000___ 

 
To the Department of Economic and Community Development on behalf of the Town of 
Brunswick, substantially in the form presented to this Council; 

 
2) Is authorized to make assurances on behalf of the Town of Brunswick required as part 

of such applications, 
 

3) Is authorized to ensure and verify that Blue Dog Day Care remains in business for the 
five (5) years following the grant award in order to receive a 20% forgiveness each year 
for full forgiveness at the start of the sixth year and that in the event that Blue Dog Day 
Care does not meet the requirements of the CDBG grant, and in the event that DECD 
determines that the Town must return or repay all or any portion of the grant funds to 
DECD, then in such event Blue Dog Day Care agrees to indemnify and reimburse the 
Town for any and all DECD grant funds that the Town is required to return or repay to 
DECD; and, 

 
4) Is authorized and directed, upon acceptance of said funds to carry out the duties and 

responsibilities for implementing and said program(s), consistent with the Charter of the 
Town of Brunswick and the laws and regulations governing planning and 
implementation of community development programs in the State of Maine. 

 
 
DATE ENACTED: _________________________           Municipal Seal 
 
 















 
 

 
ITEM 4 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 











 
 

 
ITEM 5 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 January	15,	2015	
	
RE:	 Page	Street	Parking	
	
	
Several	residents	of	Page	Street	have	expressed	concerns	about	parking	that	has	occurred	for	
extended	hours	on	Page	Street.		At	times	the	parking	has	blocked,	or	made	difficult,	access	to	
driveways.	
	
Councilor	Millet	and	I	met	with	a	Page	Street	resident	and	discussed	possible	actions	the	Town	could	
take	to	ease	the	problem.		Two	suggestions	are	included	in	your	packet:	
	

 No	Overnight	Parking	Without	a	Permit	–	This	would	prohibit	parking,	except	by	residents	
with	a	Town	–issued	parking	permit,	between	the	hours	of	1:00	AM	and	6:00	AM.		This	is	the	
same	restriction	recently	enacted	for	Longfellow	Avenue.		Of	course,	in	that	situation,	the	
permit	is	to	allow	parking	that	is	prohibited	otherwise.		For	Page	Street,	there	are	currently	no	
restrictions	on	overnight	parking.	

	
 Two‐Hour	Parking	‐		This	would	prohibit	parking	for	more	than	two	(2)	consecutive	hours	in	

any	parking	space	adjacent	to	a	curb,	or	in	any	other	parking	space	adjacent	to	a	curb	on	the	
same	block,	between	the	hours	of	8:00	a.m.	and	6:00	p.m.	on	any	day	except	Sunday,	or	a	
public	holiday.		This	is	similar	to	the	two‐hour	restriction	throughout	the	Town.	

	
We	will	be	prepared	to	discuss	these	options	with	the	Town	Council.	
	
	
	
	
Attachments	
	
	
Cc:	 Police	Department	

Public	Works	Department	
	 Town	Clerk	



 

Draft Ordinance Amendments 
Providing for Two-hour parking on  

sections of Page Street  
Drafted – January 12, 2015 

Public Hearing – 
Adopted – 
Effective –  

 
 Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Brunswick, Maine, that Chapter 15, 
Articles III, the Municipal Code of Ordinances, Town of Brunswick, Maine, is amended by 
adding the underlined language as follows: 

 
Chapter 15 

TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES 
Article IV. 

Stopping, Standing, Parking 
 
Sec. 15-76. Restricted on-street parking areas. 
 
 (a)  A person shall not park a vehicle for more than two (2) consecutive hours in any 
parking space adjacent to a curb, nor in any other parking space adjacent to a curb on the same 
block, between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on any day except Sunday, and a public 
holiday in the following areas: 
 …. 

Page Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and extending westerly to Union 
Street 

 
 
Adopted by the Brunswick Town Council at their Regular Meeting held on ____________.   
It will become effective thirty days after adoption.  
 
Attest: ________________________  
  Town Clerk 
 

O:\Word\Ordinances\Code Supplement 27 starting June 2014\DRAFT Chapter 15 page street change two hour parking Jan 2015.docx 



  
  Chapter 15 

 
TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES* 

__________  
* Cross References: Animals, Ch. 4; dogs, § 4-26 et seq.; fire prevention and protection, Ch. 7; housing, Ch. 8; vehicles for hire, 
§ 10-96 et seq.; solid waste, Ch. 13; streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14; zoning and subdivision of land, App. A; traffic 
impact analysis required in certain circumstances, App. A, § 409.3, L; subdivision regulations, App. A, § 501 et seq. 
__________  
 

 Art. I. In General, §§ 15-1--15-25 
 

 Art. II. Traffic-Control Devices, §§ 15-26--15-45 
 

 Art. III. Specific Street Regulations, §§ 15-46--15-70 
 

 Art. IV. Stopping, Standing, Parking, §§ 15-71--15-100 
 

 Art. V. Rules for Operation of Vehicles, §§ 15-101--15-120 
 

 Art. VI. Pedestrians, §§ 15-121--15-140 
 

 Art. VII. Bicycles and Skateboards, §§ 15-141--15-144 
 

. 
  ARTICLE IV. 

 
STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING* 

__________  
* Cross References: Streets, sidewalks and other public places, Ch. 14. 
__________  
 
Sec. 15-71. Rules governing stopping and parking.  
 

The following rules govern the stopping and parking of vehicles: …. 
 

   
 (14) Parking limited to residents with permits.  A person shall not stop or park a vehicle on a street 

upon which parking for a particular purpose or time period is limited to particular residents with 
permits unless an unexpired resident permit issued by the Town of Brunswick is hanging from the 
vehicle’s rear view mirror.  For the purpose of this section, a resident is defined an owner of a 
property on a designated street, as set forth on the assessing records of the Town of Brunswick.  A 
property owner may obtain up to two resident parking permits per tax lot, which permits may be 
displayed in the vehicle of the property owner, a tenant of the property owner, a family member of 
the property owner or tenant, or a guest/invitee of the property owner or tenant.  The permits are 
issued to the property owner and are not vehicle specific.  Each a permit shall cost $25.00 per year 
and the expiration date shall be displayed prominently on the permit. Resident parking permits do 
not entitle to the permit holder to disregard a snow emergency parking ban.  Longfellow 
Avenue rResident parking permits for a particular street shall only be issued to  be limited to 



Longfellow Avenue residents of that street. Report to Town Council: The police department will 
report to the town council on the effectiveness of the permit system by the second meeting of 
January, 2016. 

 
Sec. 15-73. Overnight parking restricted. 
 

(a) … 
 
 (k)  A person shall not park a vehicle on Page Street, north side, commencing at Maine Street and 
extending westerly to Union Street between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. unless the vehicle displays an 
unexpired Page Street resident parking permit issued in accordance with Sec. 15-71 (14). 
 
… 
 
   



 
 

 
ITEM 6 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



MEMORANDUM	
	
	
TO:	 Town	Council	
	
FROM:	 John	Eldridge	
	 Town	Manager	
	
DATE:	 January	15,	2015	
	
RE:	 Legal	Services	Agreement	
	
	
Attached	is	a	draft	of	the	agreement	for	legal	services	with	Preti	Flaherty	for	2015.		The	draft	is	
essentially	the	same	agreement	as	existed	for	2014.		Here	are	the	highlights:	
	

 Retainer	‐	$3,000	per	month	for	attendance	at	regular	Town	Council	meetings,	and	for	general	
inquiries.	

 All	Other	Services	–	At	the	same	hourly	rates	as	2014.	
	
In	an	effort	to	better	control	costs	we	have	proposed	the	following	language:	
	

The	quality	and	cost	of	legal	services	is	a	mutual	concern.		The	Town	will	provide	
Preti	Flaherty	with	a	list	of	personnel	who	are	authorized	to	request	legal	services.		
Preti	Flaherty	agrees	to	provide	the	Town	with	an	estimate	of	billable	hours	for	
services	not	covered	by	the	retainer	upon	request	of	the	Town	Manager.		Preti	
Flaherty	also	agrees	to	monitor	the	billable	hours	of	its	partners,	associates,	
paralegals	and	other	personnel.		Preti	Flaherty	shall	advise	the	Town	Manager	when	
billable	hours	in	response	to	a	request	exceed	ten	(10)	hours	and	further	advise	the	
Town	Manager	at	each	additional	increment	of	ten	(10)	hours.	

	
Additionally,	we	added	language	that	assures	that	any	work	product	delivered	to	the	Town	becomes	
the	property	of	the	Town	to	use	at	the	Town’s	discretion.	
	
We	will	be	prepared	to	discuss	these	options	with	the	Town	Council.	
	
	
	
	
Attachments	
	
	
Cc:	 Preti	Flaherty	



 

Preti Flaherty Agreement 2015 
7883783.1 

1

AGREEMENT FOR TOWN ATTORNEY SERVICES 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Brunswick Town Council (the “Town Council” or “Town”) reappointed Preti, 
Flaherty, Beliveau & Pachios, LLP (“Preti Flaherty”) as Town Attorney on January 5, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, Town and Preti Flaherty wish to set forth an agreement for legal services provided 
to the Town; 
 
The Town and Preti Flaherty hereby agree as follows (the ”Agreement”): 
 
1. Scope of Services.  Preti Flaherty shall provide legal services to the Town.  Preti Flaherty 

and the Town agree to full communication and cooperation during the term of this 
Agreement.  

 
2. Primary Attorney.  Stephen E. F. Langsdorf will be the primary attorney for Preti 

Flaherty, responsible for legal duties as set forth in the Charter and by Ordinance or 
Order of the Town Council, or as may otherwise be required. 

 
3. Retainer and Fees.   The Town shall pay to Preti Flaherty a monthly retainer of $3,000.  

Services included within the monthly retainer (the “Retainer”) are: 
 

a. Attendance at all regular Town Council business meetings, other than budget 
meetings. 

b. Review and respond to, as necessary, telephone calls and e-mails from the Town 
Manager, Assistant to the Town Manager, Department Heads, Town Staff, and 
the Town Council. 

c. Review and, as necessary, comment regarding weekly Council packets. 
d. Routine review of Town Ordinances as required. 
e. Routine review of documents as requested by Town. 

 
The following areas will be considered outside of the scope of the Retainer: 

 
a. Attendance at Special Town Council meetings or workshops. 
b. Attendance at Planning Board, Zoning Board of Appeals, Charter Commission or 

any other Commissions or Town Committees, and work done to prepare for such 
meetings and provide information as requested by said Boards, Commissions or 
Committees.  

c. Appearances in Court or before administrative agencies. 
d. Litigation. 
e. Labor/employment issues. 
f. Outside meetings involving Town issues. 
g. Work on extended projects, such as extensive contracts and significant ordinance 

drafting or amending. 
h. Real estate transactions. 
i. Bond Counsel. 



 

Preti Flaherty Agreement 2015 
7883783.1 

2

 
Services outside the scope of the Retainer shall be billed as follows: 

 
 $200 per hour for Stephen Langsdorf; 
 $195 per hour for all other partners; 
 $175 for associates; and  
 $100 for paralegals. 

 
Other than travel at IRS rates, the Town shall not be billed for costs related to services 
covered in the Retainer.  Other than this exception, the Town shall be responsible for out-
of-pocket costs incurred by Preti Flaherty related to the Town’s legal matters, including: 

 
a. Travel at IRS rates 
b. Photocopies 
c. Special delivery, courier, express delivery, and extraordinary mailing costs; 
d. Experts, consultants, and third-party vendors; 
e. Depositions and deposition transcripts; 
f. Court costs and docket fees; and 
g. UCC filing and registry recording fees. 

 
The quality and cost of legal services is a mutual concern.  The Town will provide Preti 
Flaherty with a list of personnel who are authorized to request legal services.  Preti 
Flaherty agrees to provide the Town with an estimate of billable hours for services not 
covered by the retainer upon request of the Town Manager.  Preti Flaherty also agrees to 
monitor the billable hours of its partners, associates, paralegals and other personnel.  Preti 
Flaherty shall advise the Town Manager when billable hours in response to a request 
exceed ten (10) hours and further advise the Town Manager at each additional increment 
of ten (10) hours. 

 
4. Invoices and Disputes.  Invoices will be provided monthly to the Town.  The invoices 

shall generally describe all work completed pursuant to the Retainer and itemize, in 
detail, all work not included within the Retainer.  For services beyond those covered by 
the Retainer, invoices shall be in sufficient detail to provide a record of billable time by 
attorney, other professionals, and staff.  Invoices shall also itemize billable costs and 
services described in, and contemplated by, this Agreement.  Preti Flaherty agrees to 
make its best efforts to accommodate the Town’s requests for additional billing formats 
or reports, should those be requested. 

 
Preti Flaherty reserves the right to charge interest at the rate of 1% per month on any 
invoice that remains unpaid after ninety (90) days.  Interest shall not apply to invoices 
that are in dispute. 
 
If any dispute arises under this Agreement concerning the payment of fees, the matter 
shall be submitted for fee arbitration in accordance with Rule 9(e)-(k) of the Maine Bar 
Rules.  This arbitration shall be binding upon both parties to this Agreement. 

 



 

Preti Flaherty Agreement 2015 
7883783.1 

3

5. Conflicts of Interest.  The Town understands that Preti Flaherty represents many clients 
and that it is possible that the past, present or future, interest of one of Preti Flaherty’s 
other clients may be adverse to the Town’s.  Preti Flaherty will notify the Town of such 
conflict or potential conflict as soon as it becomes aware of the same.  Preti Flaherty and 
the Town agree to discuss the appropriate representation by Preti Flaherty should those 
circumstances arise.  However, Preti Flaherty shall not represent a client identified with a 
potential or actual conflict of interest without written permission from the Town.  Preti 
Flaherty reserves the right to withdraw from the representation of both clients in the 
particular matter in which such conflict of interest arises. 

 
6. Files and Property Retention and Disposition.  Any work product delivered to the Town 

shall be the property of the Town which the Town  shall be entitled to use, copy, and 
distribute at its discretion..  The file(s) which Preti Flaherty generates are the property of 
Preti Flaherty.  The Town is entitled to the return of documents and property provided by 
the Town or others on the Town’s behalf.  As a political subdivision of the State of 
Maine, the Town is subject to certain laws and regulations governing the retention and 
disclosure of it records.  Preti Flaherty shall retain all files and documents generated 
during the term of this Agreement.  At the conclusion or earlier termination of this 
Agreement, Preti Flaherty and the Town agree to discuss the retention, disposition and 
transfer of files and documents as appropriate. 

 
7. Term and Termination.  Unless sooner terminated, this Agreement is for a term of 

approximately one year, ending with the inauguration of a new town council and its 
appointment of a town attorney in accordance with the Charter of the Town of 
Brunswick, Maine.  The Town reserves the right to terminate this Agreement at any time 
during the term.  In the event that Preti Flaherty determines that it can no longer serve the 
Town because of a legal, ethical, or professional consideration, it may terminate this 
Agreement by providing reasonable notice to the Town.  In such circumstances, the 
Town and Preti Flaherty shall first attempt to remediate the identified issues. 

 
8. Fee Option Reevaluation.  Preti Flaherty and the Town agree to meet to reevaluate fee 

options upon the request of either party. 
 
 
 Executed and agreed to this ___ day of ______________ 2015. 
 
 
TOWN OF BRUNSWICK    PRETI FLAHERTY BELIVEAU & 
       PACHIOS, LLP 
       
 
______________________________  ______________________________  
By: Sarah Brayman, Chair    By: Stephen E. F. Langsdorf, Partner 
Brunswick Town Council 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 7 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



DRAFT 
 
Proposed amendments to the Council rules 
RULES OF ORDER AND PROCEDURE FOR BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 
 28. Order of Business 
 
  The business of all regular meetings of the Town Council shall be transacted in the 

following order, unless the Town Council changes the order: 
 

(1) Roll call of Members 
(2) Acknowledge Notice 
(3) Public Comments 
(4) Committee Reports 
(5) Adjustments to Agenda 
(6) Manager’s Report 
(7) Consent Agenda 
(8) Hearings 
(9) Tabled Matters 
(10) New Business 
(11) Consent Agenda 

   
 
 42. Procedure 
 
  Ordinances, except emergency measures, shall not be passed until they have been read on 

two separate days at regular or special meetings of the Town Council unless this 
requirement is dispensed with by the affirmative vote of at least 6 Town Councilors.  
Each reading shall be by title only, but on request of two or more Town Councilors, the 
second reading shall be section by section for as many sections as are requested.  On the 
passage of every ordinance or resolution, the vote shall be taken by yeas or nays and 
entered in full upon the record.  Every Town Councilor shall be required to vote, unless 
excused for cause by vote of the Town Council.  The vote shall be for or against a 
pending ordinance or resolution and not on the report of the committee thereon. 

    
 A. Public Hearing on Ordinances   
 
 1) Before an ordinance is enacted, amended or repealed the Town Council shall 

hold a public hearing, notice of which must be published in a newspaper 
having general circulation in the Town at least 10 days before the hearing 
date.  The text of the intended act must be included in the notice where it is 
reasonable to do so, in the opinion of the Town Council.  Otherwise, the 
notice must contain a reasonable summary of the purpose of the intended act.  
In either case, a reasonable number of copies of the proposed ordinance must 
be made available to the public at the office of the Manager for at least 10 
days before the hearing date. 

 



Public hearing process: 
 
The Town Council will conduct the public hearing by reading the item, opening 
the public hearing, testimony, and closing the public hearing.  Once the public 
hearing is opened, the sponsor or appropriate staff person will introduce the item, 
and comments will be allowed from both the public and Council, with an 
opportunity for responses from questions.  Once the public hearing is closed, the 
Council will determine if any action is necessary as allowed under the Council 
rules and the Town Charter, but the Council is encouraged to postpone action 
until a future meeting to allow for the consideration of the public comments.   

 
 2) An ordinance becomes effective 30 days after passage unless the ordinance is 

adopted on an emergency basis. 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 8 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

 
ITEM 9 
NO BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - A 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Draft 
BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 

Minutes 
December 15, 2014 

6:00 P.M. – Council Photos 
7:00 P.M.  

Council Chambers 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 

Councilors Present: Chair Benet Pols, W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, Suzan Wilson, 
John M. Perreault, Gerald E. Favreau, Jane F. Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, 
and John Richardson, Jr. 

 
Councilors Absent: None 
 
Town Staff Present: John Eldridge, Town Manager; Elin M. Gould, Deputy Town Clerk; Linda 

Smith, Business Development Manager; Tom Farrell, Parks and 
Recreation Director; Anna Breinich, Director of Planning and 
Development: John Foster, Public Works Director; Terry Goan, Police 
Officer; Steve Langsdorf, Town Attorney; and TV video crew 

 
Chair Pols called the meeting to order, asked the Clerk for roll call, and acknowledged that the 
meeting was properly noticed. 
 
Chair Pols explained the reason for the executive session that was on the agenda.  There was no 
motion to go in to executive session so a recess was called.  A memo from the Town Attorney 
regarding the advertised executive session topic was provided to the public in attendance. 
 
Chair Pols resumed the meeting at 6:58 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Public Comment (This item was discussed at 7:00 p.m.) 
 
Claudia Knox, 36 Cumberland Street, spoke about the Downeaster and its effect on economic 
development, citing examples in Biddeford/Saco. 
 
Joyce “Jay” McCreight, new State House Representative from District 51, representing East 
Brunswick, Harpswell, and West Bath, introduced herself and spoke about some of the issues to 
be addressed in the upcoming legislative session. 
 
Correspondence (This item was discussed at 7:13 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Favreau and Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation, introduced Mariah 
Reading, a Bowdoin College student, and Susan Weems, both of whom worked on the Arts 
Around Town Health and Fitness art project and murals featured at the Recreation Center at 
Brunswick Landing.  A short Power Point presentation highlighted the new art created by 
students at all grade levels. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
December 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Councilor Millett said she had received emails from Page Street residents regarding parking of 
out of state cars on the street, and an email regarding the proposal to house 5th graders at the 
junior high school and the effect of housing younger and older students together. 
 
Chair Pols spoke about the excellent musicians at Brunswick High School and the level of 
commitment of the teachers, such as Mr. Scarponi, who go above and beyond while working 
with the students.  He said the poinsettias in the Council Chamber were from last week’s concert 
and were donated. 
 
Adjustments to the Agenda (This item was discussed at 7:22 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge asked to add to the Consent Agenda a Quitclaim deed giving property back to 
owner due to the payment of taxes owed. 
 
Council Committee Updates  (This item was discussed at 7:24 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Brayman said that last week’s Finance Committee meeting was rescheduled for 
tomorrow. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
 
a) Financial Update (This item was discussed at 7:25 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge provided this update. 
 
Councilor Favreau asked a question, to which Manager Eldridge and Councilor Brayman 
responded. 

 
b) Holiday trash and recycling pick-up schedule (This item was discussed at 7:29 p.m.) 

 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 

 
c) Town Office holiday closures Wednesday, December 24th at noon and Friday, 

December 26th   (This item was discussed at 7:30 p.m.) 
 

Manager Eldridge requested that the Town Hall Offices be closed starting at noon on Christmas 
Eve to reopen on Monday, December 29th. 
 
Councilors Perreault, Richardson, Favreau and Millett asked questions, to which Manager 
Eldridge responded. 

 
Councilor Favreau moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to close the Town Offices on 
Wednesday, December 24th beginning at noon and Friday, December 26th all day.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Mr. Eldridge will be attached to the official minutes.). 



Town Council Minutes 
December 15, 2014 
Page 3 
 

 
 

 
d) Update on salary adjustments for nonunion Town employees  

(This item was discussed at 7:37 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge gave a short explanation of the history of this issue and said a proposal will be 
brought back to the Council in January. 

 
e) Update on METRO bus service to Brunswick (This item was discussed at 7:40 p.m.) 
 
Manager Eldridge spoke regarding this item. 
 
Councilor Richardson and Chair Pols spoke regarding this item. 

 
(A copy of a memo from Manager Eldridge, including Brunswick Explorer ridership and budget 
information, will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
146. The Town Council will consider setting a public hearing for January 20, 2015, 

regarding an application for a CDBG grant under the MicroEnterprise Program for 
Blue Dog Daycare for a project at Brunswick Landing, and will take any 
appropriate action.  (Manager)  (This item was discussed at 7:48 p.m.) 

 
Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, made the request for the Council to set a public 
hearing. 
 
Councilors Perreault and Millet asked questions, to which Linda Smith responded. 
 
Councilor Richardson spoke about the MicroEnterprise program. 
 
Councilor Pols moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to set a public hearing for January 20, 
2015, for the MicroEnterprise application on behalf of Blue Dog Daycare.  The motion 
carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of a letter of invitation will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
147. The Town Council will consider approving a proposed Sewer District Charter 

amendment to increase the Sewer District’s debt limit from $20,000,000 to 
$40,000,000, and will take any appropriate action. (Manager) (This item was 
discussed at 7:57 p.m.) 

 
Leonard Blanchette, Brunswick Sewer District, explained the process and the reason for the 
proposed increase in the debt limit. 
 
Councilor Pols moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to approve the proposed 
Sewer District Charter amendments to increase the Sewer District’s debt limit from  



Town Council Minutes 
December 15, 2014 
Page 4 
 

 
 

$20,000,000 to $40,000,000, so that it can be considered by the Legislature and then the 
Sewer District voters.   
 
Councilors Brayman, Perreault, Richardson, Millett, and Chair Pols, made comments and asked 
questions, to which Mr. Blanchette answered. 
 
Town Attorney Steve Langsdorf also asked questions and made comments on the subject. 
 
Councilor Pols withdrew his motion.  Councilor Wilson withdrew her second of the motion. 
 
Councilor Pols moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to approve the proposed Sewer District 
Charter amendments to increase the Sewer District’s debt limit from $20,000,000 to 
$25,000,000, so that it can be considered by the Legislature and then the Sewer District 
voters.   
 
Councilors Millett and Favreau spoke on the issue and Councilor Walker asked a question, to 
which Mr. Blanchette responded. 
 
Vote on the motion: 
Councilor Pols moved, Councilor Wilson seconded, to approve the proposed Sewer District 
Charter amendments to increase the Sewer District’s debt limit from $20,000,000 to 
$25,000,000, so that it can be considered by the Legislature and then the Sewer District 
voters.  The motion carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Richardson was opposed. 
 
(A copy of two memos from the Sewer District will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
148. The Town Council will consider permitting CGI Communications to produce a 

video about the Town of Brunswick at no charge, by having the Town provide a 
letter of introduction to its businesses to solicit interest in purchasing CGI 
Communications video production services, and will take any appropriate action. 
(Manager) (This item was discussed at 8:35 p.m.) 

 
Linda Smith, Business Development Manager, spoke about this item, responding to questions 
posed by Councilors at a previous meeting. 
 
Councilor Millett asked a question, to which Ms. Smith responded. 
 
Town Attorney Langsdorf said the proposed contract is acceptable. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to allow the Town Manager to move 
forward with a no-cost Agreement with CGI Communications for video activities and 
products for the Town of Brunswick for the late spring/early summer 2015.   
 
Councilor Watson spoke about the contract and Councilor Brayman commented about what she 
would like to see in the production. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
December 15, 2014 
Page 5 
 

 
 

Vote on the motion: 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to allow the Town Manager to move 
forward with a no-cost Agreement with CGI Communications for video activities and 
products for the Town of Brunswick for the late spring/early summer 2015.  The motion 
carried with eight (8) yeas.  Councilor Brayman was opposed. 
 
(A copy of a memo from Linda Smith will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
The Council took a brief recess at 8:45 p.m. 
 
149. The Town Council will consider filing a request to participate as an Intervenor 

regarding the NNEPRA’s layover facility application with DEP, and will take any 
appropriate action. (Chair Pols)  (This item was discussed at 8:51 p.m.) 

 
Chair Pols explained his reason for putting the item on the agenda. 
 
Attorney Langsdorf summarized the ways the Town can participate in the process. 
 
Chair Pols, Councilor Walker, and Councilor Richardson asked questions, to which Mr. 
Langsdorf responded. 
 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to have the Town of 
Brunswick file a request to participate as a State, Federal, Municipal, or other 
Governmental Agency Participant in the DEP public hearing for the train layover facility.   
 
Councilor Perreault, Councilor Wilson, Councilor Walker, Councilor Millett and Councilor 
Favreau asked questions, to which John Foster, Public Works Director, and Manager Eldridge 
responded. 
 
Vote on the motion: 
Councilor Richardson moved, Councilor Perreault seconded, to have the Town of 
Brunswick file a request to participate as a State, Federal, Municipal, or other 
Governmental Agency Participant in the DEP public hearing for the train layover facility.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the Notice Regarding Filing of Requests to Participate in Public Hearing as an 
Intervenor and a memo from the Town Attorney will be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Mr. Langsdorf said he will take all steps necessary to get the Town on the Distribution list. 
 
150. The Town Council will consider appointments to the Town’s Boards and 

Committees, and will take any appropriate action. (Appointments Committee)  
(This item was discussed at 9:21 p.m.) 

 
On behalf of the Appointments Committee, Councilor Favreau nominated the following 
uncontested applicants: 



Town Council Minutes 
December 15, 2014 
Page 6 
 

 
 

 
Mike Lyne for appointment to the Recreation Commission 
Brooks Stoddard for re-appointment to the Village Review Board 
 
Hearing no other nominations, the Council voted unanimously to appoint the nominees. 
 
Councilor Walker thanked Councilor Favreau for his leadership on the Appointments Committee 
this past year. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (This item was discussed at 9:22 p.m.) 

a) Approval of the Minutes of December 1, 2014 
b) Approval of Games of Chance for Knights of Columbus, 2 Columbus Drive 
c) Approval of Quitclaim Deed Map 045 Lot 003 Sub 000 Typ 169 
d) Approval of Quitclaim Deed Map 029 Lot 003 Sub 00A Typ 000 

 
Councilor Perreault moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
The motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
(A copy of the application for item CA-b and the Quit Claim deeds for item CA-c and CA-d will 
be attached to the official minutes.) 
 
Recognition of outgoing Councilors (This item was discussed at 9:23 p.m.) 
 
Councilors Wilson and Perreault presented plaques to outgoing Councilor Favreau and Chair 
Pols for their years of exemplary service to the Town of Brunswick. 
 
Councilor Favreau thanked town staff and talked about his admiration for the people of 
Brunswick.   
 
Chair Pols appreciated the kind words and wished the Council good luck. 
 
Councilor Watson moved, Councilor Favreau seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The 
motion carried with nine (9) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:36 p.m. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES. THE ENTIRE 
MEETING CAN BE VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
Elin M. Gould 
Deputy Town Clerk 
December 16, 2014 
 



Town Council Minutes 
December 15, 2014 
Page 7 
 

 
 

 
 

January 20, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 
 
 

______________ 
Council Chair 

 
 
 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA - B 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



 
Draft 

BRUNSWICK TOWN COUNCIL 
Minutes 

January 5, 2015 
7:00 P.M. 

Council Chamber 
Town Hall 

85 Union Street 
 
Councilors Present: W. David Watson, Stephen S. Walker, John M. Perreault, Daniel E. Harris, Jane F. 

Millett, Sarah E. Brayman, and Katherine E. Wilson 
 
Councilors Absent: Suzan Wilson and John Richardson, Jr. 
 
School Board Members Present: Richard P. Ellis, Brenda D. Clough, Christopher J. MCarthy, Corinne 

A. Perreault, James S. Grant, Janet C. Connors, Sarah N. Singer, Joy Y. 
Prescott, and William H. Thompson  

 
Town Staff Present: John S. Eldridge, III, Town Manager; Fran Smith, Town Clerk/Assistant to the Town 

Manager; Paul Perzanoski, Superintendent of Schools; Greg Bartlett, Assistant 
Superintendent of Schools; Tom Farrell, Director of Parks and Recreation; Cathy 
Jamison, Assessor; Linda Smith, Business Development Manager; Julie Henze, 
Finance Director; Richard Rizzo, Police Chief; Elin M. Gould, Deputy Town Clerk; 
Susan M. Karnes, Assistant Town Clerk; and TV video crew 

 
Councilors-Elect Sworn to Office:  Town Clerk Fran Smith led the oath for the following 

Town Councilors: Daniel E. Harris, Sarah E. Brayman, 
and Katherine E. Wilson 

 
School Board Members-Elect Sworn to Office:   Town Clerk Fran Smith led the oath for the following 

School Board members: James S. Grant, Sarah N. 
Singer, and William H. Thompson 

 
Town Clerk Fran Smith opened the Organizational meeting at 7:12 p.m., acknowledged that proper notice of 
the meeting was given, and conducted roll call. 
 
1. Elections and Appointments 

a. Election of Council Chair.  (This item was discussed at 7:13 p.m.) 
 

Ms. Smith, Town Clerk, asked for nominations for Council Chair. 
 

Councilor Perreault nominated Councilor Brayman. 
 

There were no other nominations. 
 

Councilor Brayman was elected 2015 Council Chair with five (5) yeas.  Councilor Watson and 
Councilor K. Wilson was opposed. 

 
1. Elections and Appointments 

b. Election of Council Vice Chair.  (This item was discussed at 7:15 p.m.) 
 
Councilor Millett nominated Councilor Walker. 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 5, 2015 
Page 2 
 

There were no other nominations. 
 
Councilor Walker was elected 2015 Council Vice Chair with five (5) yeas.  Councilor Watson 
and Councilor K. Wilson was opposed. 
 

c. The Town Council will appoint the Town Attorney.  (This item was discussed at 7:17 p.m.) 
 

Councilor Brayman moved, Councilor Walker seconded, to appoint Steve Langsdorf of Preti 
Flaherty as Town Attorney, with the condition that the contract is reviewed for approval at the 
next Council meeting.  The motion carried with six (6) yeas.  Councilor Watson was opposed. 

 
d.      The Town Council will appoint Council Representatives to the following:  

 (This item was discussed at 7:17 p.m.) 
 Appointment Sub-committee  
 Brunswick Development Corporation  
 Brunswick Teen Center 
 Cable Television Committee  
 Captain Fitzgerald Recreation & Conservation Committee 
 Citizens Initiative Clarity Board 
 Downtown and Outer Pleasant Street Master Plan Implementation 

Committee  
 Recycling & Sustainability Committee  
 Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission 
 Solid Waste Task Force Committee 
 Trust Fund Advisory Committee  

 
 

Chair Brayman made appointments to those committees that will be meeting prior to the next 
Council meeting and tabled the appointment of the others until the next Council meeting. 
 
Chair Brayman made the following appointments: 
 
Brunswick Development Corporation:  Councilor Harris 

  
Brunswick Teen Center:  Councilor S. Wilson 

 
Cable Television Committee:  Councilor Watson 

 
Rivers & Coastal Waters Commission: Councilor Walker and Councilor S. Wilson 

 
     
 
 
 

2. The Town Council will set the dates for the 2015 Regular Council Meeting schedule, and will take 
any appropriate action.   (This item was discussed at 7:24 p.m.) 
 



Town Council Minutes 
January 5, 2015 
Page 3 
 
Chair Brayman suggested adjusting the proposed calendar by moving the second meetings of February and 
April to the fourth Monday due to school vacation weeks in those months.  

 
Councilor Brayman moved, Councilor Millett seconded, to adopt the 2015 Council Meeting schedule, 
as attached to the official record.  The motion carried with seven (7) yeas. 
 
Councilor Perreault suggested that this year the Council hold its Retreat at Town Hall; Chair 
Brayman agreed.  The Retreat is scheduled for January 17, 2015. 
 
Councilor Walker moved, Councilor Watson seconded, to adjourn the meeting.  The motion carried 
with seven (7) yeas. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7: 30 pm. 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  THESE MINUTES ARE ACTION MINUTES.  THE ENTIRE MEETING CAN BE 
VIEWED AT WWW.BRUNSWICKME.ORG.  
 
 
 
 
 
Frances M. Smith 
Town Clerk 
January 7, 2015 
 

January 20, 2015 
Date of Approval 

 

___________________________ 
Council Chair 

 



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - C 
BACK UP MATERIALS 





 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - D 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



O:\Finance\Taxes\Documents\Waiver Resolution.docx 

TOWN OF BRUNSWICK, MAINE 
TOWN COUNCIL 

 
Resolution Authorizing the Town Treasurer to Waive Foreclosure on  

Certain Real Estate Tax Lien Mortgages 
 
 
WHEREAS, On August 23, 2013 the Tax Collector for the Town of Brunswick, 
pursuant to 36 MRSA §942 and §943, filed tax lien mortgage certificates in the 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds to secure payment of real estate taxes that were 
assessed on April 1, 2012 and unpaid as of August 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 23, 2015 those tax lien mortgages will foreclose if the 
outstanding real estate taxes, including interest and costs, are not paid in-full; and 
 
WHEREAS, upon foreclosure the Town of Brunswick will acquire title to the properties 
secured by the tax lien mortgage certificates; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager, in consultation with the Tax Assessor, Codes 
Enforcement Officer and Finance Director, has determined that there are certain 
properties in such condition that the Town's interest is better served in not acquiring 
them; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Manager is recommending that the Town not acquire such 
properties; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that pursuant to 36 MRSA §944, the Town 
Treasurer be authorized to waive foreclosure on any properties that the Town Manager 
has determined are not in the Town's interest to acquire; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Town Treasurer be authorized to file, in the 
Cumberland County Registry of Deeds, certificates waiving foreclosure on the identified 
properties. 
 
 
Proposed to Town Council:  January 20, 2015 
Adopted by Town Council:   



 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA - E 
BACK UP MATERIALS 



Town of Brunswick, Maine 
INCORPORATED 1739 

MARINE RESOURCES & HARBOR MANAGEMENT 

85 PLEASANT STREET 

BRUNSWICK, MAINE 04011 

TELEPHONE 207-725-5521  FAX 207-725-6663 

Email – ddevereaux@brunswickpd.org

Daniel R. Devereaux 

Marine Resource Officer 

Harbormaster 

www.brunswickme.org/departments/police 

January 10, 2015 

TO:    Fran Smith, Town Clerk 

CC:   Chairman Mark Latti, Marine Resources; John Eldridge, Town Manager 

FROM:  Daniel Devereaux MRO/HM 

REF:   Marine Resource Committee Authority 

Dear Mrs. Smith, 

The Brunswick Marine Resource Committee is respectfully seeking its annual authority from the 

Brunswick Town Council to open in close coastal waters within the Town of Brunswick 

jurisdiction. 

This request is under direction of the Brunswick Municipal Code Chapter 11, Marine Activities 

Structures and Ways Section 11-161 Opening and Closing of Coastal Waters.  See below: 

a) The marine resource committee, with the approval of the commissioner of marine resources, and the direct

consent of the town council, and this consent to be given by the town council on an annual basis at their

first regular meeting after the organization meeting, may open and close coastal waters. Except for

emergency closures, or openings, the marine resource committee shall call a public hearing and shall send

a copy of the notice to the Department of Marine Resources. At the hearing, the staff shall present evidence

obtained from its survey and other sources, and members of the public may present evidence in support or

refutation of the evidence presented by the staff. In the event of an emergency closure, or openings, the

marine resource committee shall hold a public hearing as soon as practical, considering the need for

adequate public notice and participation.

The chair may determine that an opening or closing shall be placed on the agenda and shall direct staff to

give notice of the hearing. Notice shall be posted at the town office, and published in a newspaper of

general circulation no less than seven (7) days before the date of the hearing.

(b)   After the hearing is closed, the marine resource committee shall make findings of fact on the relevant

evidence presented. They shall then make a conclusion based on those findings of fact as to whether

opening of coastal waters as requested is warranted by the recovery of the resource; or the freedom from

predation, competition or other resource problem. If so, the marine resource committee with the

concurrence of the department of marine resources shall order the coastal waters opening and shall set

such time limitations and other harvesting conditions as are consistent with good conservation practices. If

the request is to close the coastal waters, the marine resource committee shall make a conclusion based on

their findings of fact as to whether closing the coastal waters is warranted by depletion of the shellfish,

destruction of existing seed; or predation, competition or other resource problem. If so, the marine

resource committee shall order the coastal waters closed until further request for opening by the staff. Any

proposal for opening or closing of coastal waters shall be approved by the commissioner of marine

resources prior to enactment.



(c)   When the marine resource committee opens or closes the coastal waters, the committee's action may 

be reviewed at a regularly or specially scheduled town council meeting. The town council may uphold, 

reverse or amend the opening or closing decision of the marine resource committee. 

With this authority the Brunswick Marine Resource Committee is authorized to open and close 

shellfishing grounds for conservation based on evidence provided to them by staff or the public.  

It alleviates the Town Council from public hearings concerning the closure of coastal waters.  It 

however does not prohibit the Town Council from reviewing and reversing decisions made by 

the Marine Resource Committee. 

The Marine Resource Committee on an occasional basis will open and close areas to ensure 

sustainability or allow undersized shellfish to reach marketable size without being disturbed.  

They also use this authority to close areas they have recently reseeded with juvenile shellfish.  

To conduct these types of closures the Town Council must with a majority approval give its 

permission.  If you have any questions or concerns please contact me.   

Respectfully, 
Daniel R. Devereaux MRO/HM 
Daniel R. Devereaux MRO/HM 



 
 

 
ITEM CA F and G 
BACK UP MATERIALS 
 



Memorandum 

 

To: Town Clerk Smith 

From: Cmdr. Waltz 

Re: Acceptance of Grants 

Date: January 8, 2015 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 The Police Department would like permission to accept and expend the following grants: 

1. 2014-15 Byrne Grant.  Based upon our crime statistics, Brunswick is allocated a certain 

percentage of the federal Edward Byrne Memorial pass though grant.  The amount Brunswick 

could apply for 2014/15 was $6,916.00.  No match is required, however the money cannot 

supplant local funds.  We have proposed to the State of Maine to use the money for mobile 

(cruiser) radio equipment, a radar unit (for traffic enforcement), game cameras (used for 

surveillance by CID), a Nikon SLR digital camera (used for crime scene processing) and an 

adjustable monitor array stand (for a dispatch work station). None of these items are in our 

regular budget so there is no risk of supplantation. 

 

2. Cumberland County EMA Grant.  We have been awarded “leftover” FY 2013 emergency 

management grant money two replace/improve some of the protective equipment for our 

special response team.  We have been authorized to be reimbursed (100%) for the purchase of 

six helmets, six ballistic vests and six protective plates for the vests.  The total amount of the 

grant is $19,447.20.       

 

Neither grant requires a match. 

 

 


	mr a on line only
	mr b yes
	mr b SecondProceduralOrderwithattachments
	mr c no
	3 yes
	3 a Blue Dog - Town Council Memo on Blue Dog MicroEnterprise App (1-12-2015)
	3 b2014 Brunswick - Blue Dog Micro Enterprise Assistance Application (for Public Hearing review 1-9-2015)
	3 cBLUE DOG  DAY CARE FLYER (11-14-2014)
	4 yes
	4 spec amus_20150114090342
	5 yes
	5 DRAFT Chapter 15 page street change two hour parking Jan 2015
	5 Parking Ordinance Changes for Page ST Resident Overnight Parking
	6 yes
	6 brunswick_town_agreement for legal services 2015 (1st Draft)
	7 yes
	8 no
	9 no
	ca a yes
	ca a Dec 15, 2014 min
	ca b yes
	ca b Jan 5, 2015 ing min
	ca c yes
	ca c elkd_20150114090536
	ca d yes
	ca d resolution
	ca e yes
	ca f and g yes
	ca f and g Grant Acceptance Request
	3 full.pdf
	3 a Blue Dog Day Care TR Public Notice (1-9-2015)
	3 b 2014 Brunswick - Blue Dog Micro Enterprise Assistance Application (for Public Hearing review 1-9-2015)
	3 c COUNCIL RESOLUTION for Blue Dog MicroEnterpise Grant (1-12-2015)
	3 d Blue Dog - Town Council Memo on Blue Dog MicroEnterprise App (1-12-2015)
	3 d1 BLUE DOG  DAY CARE FLYER (11-14-2014)
	3 e Blue Dog Daycare LOI - signed (12-03-2014)
	3 f Blue Dog Daycare - DECD Invitation (12-04-2014)


